
 

 

  
PUBLIC NOTICE AND AGENDA OF THE WEST BRANCH CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

SCHEDULED TO CONVENE AT 7:00 P.M. MONDAY NOVEMBER 16, 2020 IN THE CITY 

COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 110 NORTH POPLAR STREET, WEST BRANCH, IOWA. 
 
Mayor Roger Laughlin mayor@westbranchiowa.org 

Mayor Pro Tem Colton Miller mcolton@rocketmail.com 

Council Member Jodee Stoolman j.stoolmanwbcc@yahoo.com  

Council Member Nick Goodweiler nickgoodweilerwbcc@gmail.com  

Council Member Tom Dean tdiowa@hotmail.com  

Council Member Jerry Sexton jerrysextonwb@gmail.com  

City Administrator Redmond Jones II rjonesii@westbranchiowa.org 

City Attorney Kevin Olson kevinolsonlaw@gmail.com 

Deputy City Clerk Leslie Brick leslie@westbranchiowa.org 
 

Please note:  Most written communications to or from government officials regarding government 

business are public records available to the public and media upon request.  Your e-mail 

communications may therefore be subject to public disclosure.  Electronic Meeting (Pursuant to 

Iowa Code section 21.8) An electronic meeting is being held because a meeting in person is 

impossible or impractical due to concerns for the health and safety of council members, staff and 

the public presented by COVID-19.  You can watch and/or participate in the meeting at the following 

link https://zoom.us/j/5322527574 or dial in phone number 1-312-626-6799 with Meeting ID 532 

252 7574.  A video of the meeting will also be made available November 20th on the City Website.  

For your safety and the safety of others please explore all available opportunities to participate by 

phone or computer.  If you are unable to attend or participate by computer or phone, you may come 

to City Hall as an audience member. 
 

AGENDA 

A. Call to Order 

 

B. Opening Ceremonies  
1. Pledge of Allegiance 
2. Welcome 

 
C. Roll Call 

 

D. Guest Speaker, Presentations and Proclamations. 
 

1. West Branch Public Library Annual Report for Fiscal Year 2020 – Presented by Nick 
Shimmin, Public Library / IT Director.  This presentation is intended to give the City 
Council a general overview of the library’s activities, programs, and finances. 

 

E. Public Comment 
Anyone wishing to address the City Council may come forward when invited; please state your name and 

address for the record. Public comments are typically limited to three minutes, and written comments may be 

submitted to the Deputy City Clerk.  

 

mailto:mayor@westbranchiowa.org
mailto:mcolton@rocketmail.com
mailto:rjonesii@westbranchiowa.org
mailto:kevinolsonlaw@gmail.com
mailto:leslie@westbranchiowa.org
https://zoom.us/j/5322527574


 

 

F. Approve Agenda / Consent Agenda / Move to Action 
Routine items and items not anticipated to be controversial are placed on the Consent Agenda to expedite the 

meeting.  If a Council member, staff member or member of the Public wishes to discuss any item on the 

Consent Agenda, they can request the item be removed from the Consent Agenda for discussion.   
 

1. Motion to Approve Meeting Minutes for City Council Meeting November 2, 2020.  
2. Motion to Approve the Liquor License Renewal for “Down Under” located at 201 W. 

Main Street.    
3. Resolution 1950 – Approving $1,500 Contribution to the West Branch Community 

Development Group for Assistance in Funding Expenses Related to the Christmas Past 
Ice Skating Rink.  

4. Motion to Approve the Claims Report. 
 

G. Public Hearing / Non-Consent Agenda 
  

1. Third (Final) Reading of Ordinance 781 – Amending Title “Traffic and Vehicles” Chapter 
65 “Stop or Yield Required”.      

2. Third (Final) Reading of Ordinance 778 – An Ordinance Amending Chapter 165; Entitled, 
“Zoning Regulations”. 

 
3. Public Hearing: Regarding the Request for Proposals to Dispose of and Develop 

Property.  
4. Resolution 1951 – Resolution Approving the Disposal of Lot B of Lot 4 of Rummells 

Commercial Subdivision and Approving the Purchase Agreement with Newport 
Fabricating, LLC.      

5. Resolution 1952 – A Resolution Approving the Site Plan of Newport Fabricating, LLC. 
Located at 145 Fawcett Drive.    

6. Resolution 1953 – A Resolution Hiring Logan Cilek for the Full-Time “Streets 
Maintenance Worker I” Position with the Department of Public Works.    

7. Resolution 1954 – Consider Approving the Request of Acciona Windpower North 
America, LLC to Rebate a Portion of Tax Increment Revenues.    

8. Resolution 1955 – A Consideration to Approve the Request of Casey’s Marketing 
Company to Rebate a Portion of Tax Increment Revenues. 

 
9. Resolution 1956 – A Resolution Considering the Issue of Whether EMV Holdings, LLC 

Should be Rebated the Incremental Tax Revenues Pursuant to Development Agreement.  
10. Resolution 1957 – A Consideration to Approve the Request of Meadows Development, 

Inc. to Rebate a Portion of Tax Increment Revenues.  
11. Resolution 1958 – Obligating Funds from the Urban Renewal Tax Revenue Fund for the 

Payment of Annual Appropriation Tax Increment Financed Obligations in FY 2022.   
 

12. Resolution 1959 – A Resolution Approving Annual Insurance Renewals With Wellmark 
Blue Cross Blue Shield Of Iowa For Health And Dental Insurance.  

13. Discussion Item: Update on Progress of the Capital Improvement Plan. 
 



 

 

H. Reports 

1. City Administrator’s Report 
2. City Attorney Report 
3. Staff Hearsays 

 
I. Comments from the Mayor and City Council Members 

 

J. Adjournment 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



In the Report

Welcome 1

Circulation & Collection Size 2

Ebooks 2

Summer Library Program 3

Programming 3

Financial Information 4

Library Visits 4

About this Report 4

wbplwest branch public library

AnnuAl RepoRtAnnuAl RepoRt
West Branch Public Library Annual Report for Fiscal Year 2020 October 2020

Welcome

Welcome to the Annual Report of  the West Branch Public Library for 
2020 fiscal year.  As will come to no surprise to most of  you, this year 
went from a good year into one that was very unusual and unexpected.   
While much of  our focus at the end of  the year turned to coping with 
COVID-19, the first 3/4 of  the year was a very good and “normal” 
year.  The library spent most of  our year focused on again working 
towards our strategic plan goals, outlined to the right, to help provide 
for an informed community, improve our community as a whole, and 
improve the accessibility and comfort of  the library location. 
One of  the most notable and well-received changes was the addition of  
a special teen room, seen bottom left.  It was designed with the input 
of  the teens themselves and was often full after school.  It also gave 
us the perfect opportunity to honor Karen Fieseler, a volunteer at the 
library for over 40 years, by using her memorial to commemorate this 
area.  
This coming year will be a continued challenge.  It’s expected that 
in-person events are unlikely to occur during the fiscal year which 
we as a staff  take hard given how integral they are to what we love 
doing.  While large groups of  youth are often challenging, it is likewise 
rewarding and we hope that occurs again as soon as safely possible.  
In the next few pages, you’ll find informaiton on the past year at the 
library including statistics, explanations, and charts.

SatiSfy your CurioSity

Know your Community

ViSit a Comfortable PlaCe

• Know more about what goes on in 
with local groups, service groups, 
and activities

• Get non-biased information on local 
issues

• See a positive image of our 
community

• Learn, grown, and have fun at the 
library

• Understand more about your 
money and finances 

• Experience positive interactions and 
a barrier-free environment

• Find welcoming spaces for all your 
library uses

• Enjoy outdoor amenities and green 
spaces

The new teen room (left) and book wreaths (right) during yearly programs.

rjonesii
Typewritten Text
(Presentation) Item 1



Electronic Items
It’s tough to say how electronic items 
would have progressed without 
the pandemic which provided an 
environment where online access 
became that much more important.  
However, prior to March, electronic 
circulation was already poised to see an 
increase of  about 20%.  

With the pandemic, electronic items 
grew by 30% overall, continuing an 
ever-increasing interest in electronic 
items.  Library users currently have 
access to over 78,000 electronic titles 
which continues to increase regularly.

To further provide more electronic 
items, this year the library began 
the Kanopy service which provides 
streaming video.  Videos within 
Kanopy are often documentaries or 
award winning videos, providing a 
wide topic range for people to learn 
and experience.  It also features a 
strong youth section which provides 
a wonderful collection of  animated 
childrens books.  

2020
6,442

2019
4,998

2018
4,146

2017
3,977

2016
3,468

2015
2,996

2014
2,949

2013
1,925

2012
1,099

2011
905

eBook & eAudiobook use, 2011 - 2019

2020
29,147

2019
33,608

2018
38,200

2017
42,661

2016
44,5602015

42,667
2014

43,100

16,46817,00317,51018,26918,13318,639
20,077

Total Circulation (bars) & Total Collection Size (line), 2014 -2020 

Circulation & Collection Size
The library’s collection is one area that generally didn’t see much change 
due to pandemic considerations.  Books are generaly purchased many 
months in advance so there is little change here other than regular 
maintenance.  Note that collection size details only include physical copies 
in the library building. One section which has seen an interesting decrease 
over the year is in DVDs.  The popularity of  streaming services coupled 
with the reduction of  movies appearing in theaters has led to the purchase 
and retention of  fewer DVD copies.  

Circulation would have likely seen a small increase over the prior year, but 
naturally was hindered due to pure lack of  access in the later months. 

2015
2,084

2016
2,184

2017
1,336

2018
1,321

2019
1,768 2020

1,269

-3,522
-2,690

-1,221
-1,592

-2,340

-1,865

Numbers of  items added and removed from the collection, 2015-2020

2



2020
7,114

2019
8,258

2018
8,727

2017
9,4492016

8,907

2015
9,292

2014
7,928

Programming
Library events and activities are one of  the favorite draws for the West 
Branch community.  The library worked to expand programs again, 
especially those for teens and adults to build on an already successful set 
of  youth programs.  

Naturally, the COVID pandemic inevitably had a very strong effect on 
library event attendance with the loss of  the large and active summer 
gatherings. Even with the pandemic, a record number of  adults 
attended library events which expanded further into a number of  crafts 
and learning 
opportunities.   A 
projection of  where 
attendance would 
have come in based 
on prior years’ 
patterns has also 
been included.   

Regardless, total 
attendance is 
lower due to 
indoor gathering 
restrictions.

Summer Library Program
The 2020 Summer Library Program 
was entitled, “Imagine Your Story.”  

As you might guess, the summer library 
program took a far different form than 
what was intended or what had been 
planned, ending up entirely online. 

The Friends of  the West Branch Public 
Library sponsored Beanstack, an online 
summer library program distribution 
and tracking system.  The library had 
considered adding this for many years, 
but now found it necessary.  For the 
first time, participants tracked their 
activities entirely online.

However, virtual programs aren’t 
nearly as fun as the large group 
gatherings normally found at the 
library in Summer, so registration was 
understandably decreased.  

Regardless, it is hard to frown at the 
results.  Over 520 hours were read by 
children and over 400 books read by 
teens and adults.  Combined with other 
learning, almost 2,200 activities were 
completed to earn prizes in 2020. 

 

Making Friendship Bracelets after School. 

290 284 261
220 232

59

70 59
57

67 61

31

2015

93

2016

146

2017

130

2018

112

2019

106

2020
50

3

Summer Registrations, 2015 - 2020 Program attendance - 2014-2020



About this Report

The library’s annual report 
has been prepared by 
Nick Shimmin
Library Director
PO Box 460
West Branch, IA  52358

(319)643-2633

staff@wbpl.org

visit us on the web at 
wbpl.org

The library would like to 
thank all of  the people 
that make the West Branch 
Public Library possible in 
FY2020:

Library Board of  Trustees
Karina Krall
Kristin Nalan
Lizabeth Osborne
Jim Farmer
Jan Jacobson
Lisa Kofoed
Craig Walker

Friends of  the Library 
Board
Sarah Hetrick
Jennie Embree
Liz Hernandez
Shari Heick
Lisa Nelson
Kim Linn

Staff
Nick Shimmin
Jessica Schafer
Rebecca Knoche
Katrina Korsmo

Financial Information
The general financial breakdown is provided below.  Finances, since mostly 
determined outside of  library access, was one of  the few areas not directly impacted 
by the pandemic.  To that point, there has been little change in library funding and 
expenditures over time.  

It is always necessary to note that the income and expenditure totals are not intended 
to be equal.  Some funding is used from donations from prior fiscal years and some 
funding, mostly the insurance and benefits, do not come from the library line items 
directly and are not accounted for in allotting library funding.

Staff
$146,648.00 

Insurance & 
Benefits
$36,176.00 

Collections
$23,420.00 

Building 
Upkeep

$14,795.00 

Office 
Equipment & 

Supplies
$15,370.00 

Utilities
$9,832.00 

Programs
$5,134.87 

City of  West 
Branch

$177,085.00 

Cedar County
$19,801.00 

Donations
$1,364.00 

State of  Iowa
$2,846.00 

Print/Copy 
Fees

$1,162.00 
Interest
$1,612.00 

Library Income by Category
Total: $203,870

Library Visits
As suggested in prior sections, library visits were naturally down this year due to 
restricting access for over a quarter of  the year, especially when these are generally 
some of  the busiest months for the library.   Again provided is an estimate for this year 
based on projecting last year’s use trends onto this year.  Given that projection, the 
library’s visit count would have been higher than the prior year, but mostly in line with 
the past 7-8 years.  

It would be expected that the coming year would be even lower given restrictions that 
will likely last in some effect throughout the full of  the fiscal year.  

2020
17,734

2019
22,263

2018
26,1882017

24,468
2016

24,846
2015

24,037
25,953

4

Library Expenditures by Category
Total: $251,375



 

(The following is a synopsis of the minutes of the West Branch City Council meeting. A video recording is available 

for inspection on the City of West Branch Website at westbranchiowa.org/city-of-west-branch/mayor-city-

council/meetings/.  The minutes are not approved until the next regularly scheduled City Council meeting.) 

 

West Branch, Iowa                                               City Council                                          November 2, 2020 

Council Chambers                                                Regular Meeting                                             7:00 p.m.                                                                         

 
An Electronic Meeting (pursuant to Iowa Code Section 21.8) of the City Council of the City of West Branch, 

Cedar County, IA was held on Monday, November 2, 2020 at 7:00 p.m. because a meeting in person was 

impossible or impractical due to concerns for the health and safety of Council Members, Staff and the 

Public presented by COVID-19.   

 

Until further notice, all of our Council Meetings will be held electronically.  Persons may still attend, 

observe and participate in the meeting at the Council Chambers, City Office, 110 N. Poplar St, West 

Branch, Iowa.  Social distancing practices shall be observed for any persons attending the meeting in 

person at City Hall. 

  
Mayor Roger Laughlin called the West Branch City Council meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.  Roll call: Council 

members: Colton Miller, Jodee Stoolman, Nick Goodweiler, Jerry Sexton and Tom Dean were present. City 

Staff:  City Administrator Redmond Jones II, Deputy City Clerk Leslie Brick, Finance Officer Gordon Edgar, 

and City Attorney Kevin Olson were present.  Attending via Zoom:  City Engineer Dave Schechinger, Public 

Works Director Matt Goodale, Park & Recreation Director Melissa Russell, Library/IT Director Nick 

Shimmin, Police Chief Mike Horihan and Sergeant John Hanna.    

 

GUEST SPEAKER PRESENTATIONS  

Jessi Simon, Community Development Group Executive Director, provided an update on Christmas Past 

activities scheduled for this year.  Simon explained that Christmas Past has been expanded over a four day 

period beginning Thursday, December 3rd through Sunday, December 6th.  Simon said that this will help disperse 

crowds and allow for social distancing.  New this year (in place of the carriage rides) will be a synthetic ice rink 

for outdoor skating placed near the fire station.  Reservations will be required and the cost is $10 per family 

and includes skate rental.  After skates are returned, $10 of Downtown Dollars will be given to encourage 

shopping local.  Simon said many more exciting activities are planned for the event and that more information 

will be available through their Facebook page.  Laughlin pledged City financial support toward the cost of the 

ice skating rink in an amount not to exceed $1500. 

 

Maggie Burger, Speer Financial, Inc. presented the City’s annual financial update.  Burger updated the Council 

on the City’s current outstanding General Obligation Debt and commented that the City has done a great job 

paying down debt over the past few years.  Burger said the current total debt is approximately 7.5 million.  

Burger reminded the Council that GO Debt can be paid off by several revenue sources s.  Burger continued 

with outstanding Revenue Debts (which do not count against the City debt capacity).  The revenue debt stands 

at $343,000 currently. Burger continued with the City’s current Tax Increment Financing (TIF) Obligations 

with three entities (Casey’s, EMV Holding and The Meadows- Part 4), explaining that the City must take action 

each year to appropriate TIF dollars to those entities.  Burger further explained that TIF dollars must have an 

obligation tied to it in order to request TIF and to choose projects carefully if considering to use TIF. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT  

None. 

 

CONSENT AGENDA 

Motion to Approve Meeting Minutes for City Council Meeting October 19, 2020. 
 

Motion to Approve a Special Event Permit Application for the Christmas Past event.   
 

Motion to Approve the Claims Report. 

 

    

 

https://westbranchiowa.org/city-of-west-branch/mayor-city-council/meetings/
https://westbranchiowa.org/city-of-west-branch/mayor-city-council/meetings/
rjonesii
Typewritten Text
(Minutes) Consent	         Item 1



 

EXPENDITURES    11/2/2020  
    
AMAZON     BOOKS AND SUPPLIES     1,139.29  
BAKER & TAYLOR INC.    BOOKS      525.41  
BEAVER HEATING AND AIR CON   BEAVER HEATING AND AIR CONDITI   272.00  
BRICK, LESLIE    TRAVEL EXPENSES     151.94  
CROELL, INC.    STREET IMPROVEMENTS    6,089.38  
CULLIGAN WATER TECHNOLOGIES   WATER SOFTENER SERVICE    23.20  
D&R PEST CONTROL    D&R PEST CONTROL     70.00  
DEMCO     SUPPLIES      303.99  
FROST GLORIA J    BUILDING INCENTIVE PAYMENT    933.93  
GIERKE-ROBINSON COMPANY IN   SUPPLIES      761.19  
HANSEN, TRENT    HARD DRIVES & INSTALLATION    2,828.00  
HAWKINS INC    CHEMICALS     900.81  
HD SUPPLY CONST AND INDUST   REBAR      151.89  
IMWCA     IMWCA      2,345.00  
IOWA ONE CALL    UTILITY LOCATION SERVICE    47.70  
JOHNSON COUNTY REFUSE INC.   LANDFILL-FALL CLEANUP    330.00  
LIBERTY COMMUNICATIONS   LIBERTY COMMUNICATIONS    1,594.54  
LYNCH'S PLUMBING INC   SUPPLIES      186.30  
LYNCH, RYAN OR LINDSEY   BUILDING INCENTIVE PAYMENT    1,813.57  
MENARDS     SUPPLIES      44.96  
NORLAB INC    SUPPLIES      79.00  
OLSON, KEVIN D    LEGAL SERVICES= NOVEMBER, 2020   1,500.00  
 
PLUNKETT'S PEST CONTROL INC   PEST CONTROL CITY OFFICE    95.18  
PORT 'O' JONNY INC.    SERVICE-CEMETERY     95.00  
QC ANALYTICAL SERVICES LLC   LAB ANALYSIS    825.00  
QUILL CORP    DISINFECTANT WIPES     248.80  
REDMOND JONES II    TRAVEL EXPENSES     150.83  
RICKARD SIGN & DESIGN   LABELS      150.00  
SAWYER, TIFFANY    BUILDING INCENTIVE PAYMENT    1,175.59  
SENSUS USA    SOFTWARE SUPPORT     1,949.94  
STATE INDUSTRIAL PRODUCTS   SUPPLIES      333.00  
TYLER TECHNOLOGIES   SOFTWARE ANNUAL FEE, SETUP FEE   1,376.00  
VEENSTRA & KIMM INC.   MEADOWS 3 & 4 CONST REVIEW    9,254.43  
WERLING ABSRACT COMPANY   NEW ABSTRACT LBL4 RUMMELS COMM   900.00  
WEST LIBERTY GUN CLUB, INC   MEMBERSHIP     360.00  
ZIPPY'S SALT BARN LLC   ROAD SALT     2,665.95  
    
TOTAL           41,671.82  
    
PAYROLL     10/30/2020     48,199.09  
    
PAID BETWEEN MEETINGS    
    
CULLIGAN WATER TECHNOLOGIES  WATER SOFTENER SERVICE    57.12  
EMERGENCY SERVICES MARKETING  SUBSCRIPTION RENEWAL    735.00  
JULIA HIME    VIDEOGRAPHY SERVICE    100.00  
MEGAN HOFFMAN    CLEANING SERVICE     315.00  
JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL   SAFETY EQUIPMENT     624.70  
JOHNSON COUNTY AMBULANCE SERVICE  MEDICAL SUPPLIES     614.09  
LINN COUNTY REC    STREET LIGHTS     180.10  
MEDIACOM    CABLE SERVICE     41.90  
MOORE'S WELDING INC   EQUIPMENT REPAIR     45.00  
DUSTIN PARI    LIBRARY PROGRAM     250.00  
PITNEY BOWES PURCHASE POWER  REPLENISH POSTABE MACHINE    500.00  
PYRAMID SERVICES INC   SUPPLIES      252.50  
QUAD CITY SAFETY INC   EQUIPMENT REPAIR     207.22  
RACOM CORPORATION   PAGERS      2,411.90  
SARAH PAULOS    LIBRARY PROGRAM     300.00  
US BANK CORPORATE CARD   CONFERENCES, TRAINING, SUPPLIES   1,829.09  
US BANK EQUIPMENT FINANCE   COPIER LEASE     106.25  
WALMART COMMUNITY/RFCSLLC  SUPPLIES      17.78  
WEST BRANCH FIREFIGHTERS FOUNDATION  FIRE PREVENTION SUPPLIES    125.00  
WEST BRANCH TIMES    PUBLICATION OF LEGAL NOTICES    404.30  
CITY OF MANCHESTER   STERLING DUMP/PLOW TRUCK    35,205.42  
    
TOTAL           44,322.37  
    
GRAND TOTAL EXPENDITURES         134,193.28  
    



 

FUND TOTALS    
001   GENERAL FUND     54,598.48  
022   CIVIC CENTER     163.90  
031   LIBRARY     9,458.91  
036   TORT LIABILITY     6,434.07  
110   ROAD USE TAX     13,639.33  
112   TRUST AND AGENCY   5,352.28  
308   PARK IMPROVEMENTS - PEDERSEN VALLEY 698.56  
312   DOWNTOWN EAST REDEVELOPMENT  900.00  
321   WIDENING WAPSI CREEK @ BERANEK PARK 13,029.00  
323   I-80 WEST, WATER MAIN RELOCATE  12,044.42  
600   WATER FUND     10,195.70  
610   SEWER FUND     7,678.63  
    
GRAND TOTAL     134,193.28 

 

Motion by Goodweiler, second by Sexton approve agenda/consent agenda items.  AYES:  Goodweiler, Sexton, 

Miller, Stoolman, Dean.  NAYS:  None.  Motion carried.   

 

 PUBLIC HEARING / NON-CONSENT AGENDA 
 

Second Reading of Ordinance 781 – Amending Title “Traffic and Vehicles” Chapter 65 “Stop or 

Yield Required”. / Move to action. 
Stoolman suggested that a third stop sign be added on Prairie View Drive where it intersects with Dawson 

Drive going west.  Stoolman felt there was not adequate site distance at Dawson Drive toward the east.  The 

Council discussed the idea but decided to move forward with the ordinance as written and pursue a third sign 

later if deemed necessary. 

Motion by Miller, second by Goodweiler to approve the second reading of Ordinance 781.  AYES:  Miller, 

Goodweiler, Stoolman, Dean, Sexton.  NAYS:  None.  Motion carried. 

 

Third Reading of Ordinance 777 – An Ordinance Providing that General Property Taxes Levied and 

Collected Each Year on Lot 26, Cedar Edge Addition, West Branch Iowa, be Paid to a Special Fund for 

Payment Agreed in Connection with the West Branch Urban Renewal Area. / Move to action. 

 
ORDINANCE 777 

 

AN ORDINANCE PROVIDING THAT GENERAL PROPERTY TAXES LEVIED AND COLLECTED EACH YEAR ON LOT 26, 

CEDARS EDGE ADDITION, WEST BRANCH, IOWA, IN THE CITY OF WEST BRANCH, COUNTY OF CEDAR, STATE OF IOWA, 

BY AND FOR THE BENEFIT OF THE STATE OF IOWA, CITY OF WEST BRANCH, COUNTY OF CEDAR, WEST BRANCH 

COMMUNITY SCHOOL DISTRICT, AND OTHER TAXING DISTRICTS, BE PAID TO A SPECIAL FUND FOR PAYMENT OF 

PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST ON LOANS, MONIES ADVANCED TO AND INDEBTEDNESS, INCLUDING BONDS ISSUED OR TO BE 

ISSUED, INCURRED BY SAID CITY IN CONNECTION WITH SAID WEST BRANCH URBAN RENEWAL AREA. 

 

 WHEREAS, EMV Holdings, LLC and the City of West Branch entered into that certain development agreement for the construction of a 

project located on Lot 26, Cedars Edge Addition, West Branch, Iowa (the “Property”); and 
 WHEREAS, the Property is located in the West Branch Urban Renewal Area; and 

 WHEREAS, indebtedness has been incurred by the City, and additional indebtedness is anticipated to be incurred in the future, to finance 

urban renewal project activities within the West Branch Urban Renewal Area, and the continuing needs of redevelopment of the Property within the 
West Branch Urban Renewal Area are such as to require the continued application of the incremental tax resources of the West Branch Urban 

Renewal Area; and 

 WHEREAS, the following enactment is necessary to accomplish the objectives described in the premises. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WEST BRANCH, IOWA, THAT: 
Section 1:  The taxes levied against the Property by and for the benefit of the State of Iowa, City  

of West Branch, County of Cedar, West Branch Community School District, and all other taxing districts from and after the effective date of this 
Ordinance shall be divided as hereinafter in this Ordinance provided. 

 Section 2:  As to the Property, that portion of the taxes which would be produced by the rate at which the tax is levied each year by and for 

each of the taxing districts taxing the Property in the West Branch Urban Renewal Area upon the total sum of the assessed value of Property, being 
the first day of the calendar year preceding the effective date of this Ordinance, that date being January 1, 2019, shall be allocated to and when 

collected be paid into a fund for the respective taxing district as taxes by or for said taxing district into which all other property taxes are paid.  The 

taxes so determined may be referred to herein as the “base period taxes.”  The assessed value of the Property on said date, being January 1, 2019 is 
$170,220.00.  

 Section 3:  That portion of the taxes each year in excess of base period taxes for the Property shall be allocated to and when collected be 

paid into the special tax increment fund previously established by the City of West Branch to pay the principal of and interest on loans, monies 
advanced to, or indebtedness, whether funded, refunded, assumed or otherwise, including bonds issued under authority of Section 403.9 or Section 

403.12 of the Code of Iowa, incurred by the City of West Branch, Iowa to finance or refinance, in whole or in part, urban renewal projects undertaken 

within the West Branch Urban Renewal Area pursuant to the Urban Renewal Plan, as amended.  
Section 4:  At such time as the loans, monies advanced, bonds and interest thereon and indebtedness of the City of West Branch referred to in Section 

3 hereof have been paid, or the City has provided for the division of taxes for a total of twenty (20) fiscal years, whichever is sooner, all monies 



 

thereafter received from taxes upon the Property shall be paid into the funds for the respective taxing districts in the same manner as taxes on all other 

property. 
 Section 5:  All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with the provisions of this Ordinance are hereby repealed.  In the event that 

any provision of this Ordinance shall be determined to be contrary to law it shall not affect other provisions or application of this Ordinance which 

shall at all times be construed to fully invoke the provisions of Section 403.19 of the Code of Iowa with reference to the West Branch Urban Renewal 

Area and the territory contained therein. 

 Section 6:  This Ordinance shall be in effect after its final passage, approval and publication as provided by law. 

Passed and approved this 2nd day of November, 2020. 
First Reading: October 5, 2020 

Second Reading: October 19, 2020 

Third Reading: November 2, 2020  
       _______________________________ 

       Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
_____________________________________ 

Redmond Jones II, City Administrator/Clerk  

 

Motion by Goodweiler, second by Sexton to approve the third reading of Ordinance 777.  AYES:  

Goodweiler, Sexton, Stoolman, Miller, Dean.  NAYS:  None.  Motion carried. 

    
Second Reading of Ordinance 778 – Amending Chapter 165; Entitled, “Zoning Regulations”. / Move to 

action. 

No discussion. 

Motion by Goodweiler, second by Dean to approve the second reading of Ordinance 778.  AYES: 

Goodweiler, Dean, Stoolman, Miller, Sexton.  NAYS:  None.  Motion carried. 

 

Public Hearing: Proposal to Vacate the City’s Interest in a Sanitary Sewer Easement Located in Loethen 

Ridge Estates, West Branch, Iowa. 

Laughlin opened the public hearing at 7:57 p.m.  There were no public comments.  Laughlin closed the 

public hearing at 7:58 p.m. 

 

Resolution 1947 – Approving and Accepting the Proposal to Vacate the City’s Interest in a Sanitary Sewer 

Easement Located in Loethen Ridge Estates, West Branch, Iowa. / Move to action. 

Dean asked for confirmation that the sewer line in question was no longer being used.  Schechinger 

confirmed that the sewer line had been removed during excavation of the property and therefore the 

easement no longer was needed. 

Motion by Sexton, second by Goodweiler to approve Resolution 1947.  AYES:  Sexton, Goodweiler, Miller, 

Dean, Stoolman.  NAYS:  None.  Motion carried. 

 

Resolution 1948 – Approving the Submission of the City of West Branch FY 2019 – 2020 Annual Urban 

Renewal Report. / Move to action. 

No discussion. 

Motion by Miller, second by Sexton to approve Resolution 1948.  AYES:  Miller, Sexton, Stoolman, Dean, 

Goodweiler.  NAYS:  None.  Motion carried. 

 

Discussion: Consider the Johnson County Proposal Options to Participate in the Herbert Hoover Hwy and 

Johnson Cedar Rd Intersection. 

Laughlin stated that Johnson County Engineers had provided the City several concepts for connecting 

Herbert Hoover Highway (HHH) to West Main Street for the Council to consider.  Laughlin said that 

Johnson County plans on completing the restructure of HHH next spring so a decision was needed fairly 

quick.  Laughlin added that this was ‘another project’ that was not on the City’s radar, but said he felt this 

needed to be done, and done right.  Sexton admitted that although he is not a fan of round-a-bouts, Option 4 

(exhibit 8) made the most sense.  He said that a round-a-bout would slow traffic down from the west and 

provide a nice entrance for the City.  The other members agreed but felt the southern street could be 

shortened since that is not maintained by the City and suggested that West Main Street could be added to 

align with the high school turn lane project.  Laughlin directed Jones and Schechinger to relay the Council’s 

verbal decision to Johnson County to keep the project moving along. 

 

 

 



 

 

Discussion: Consider an Ordinance Change Regarding Swimming Pools. 

Brick informed the Council that the Planning & Zoning Commission was working on an ordinance that 

would regulate swimming pools in West Branch.  Brick said the West Branch Code of Ordinance currently 

had no rules surrounding swimming pools with regard to setbacks or fencing.  The draft ordinance was 

discussed and the council felt that fencing should not be required for any above ground pool regardless of 

depth.  Brick said she would share their comments with the commission. 

 

Discussion: Setting a date and time for a work session regarding developing the priorities for a Capital 

Improvement Plan. 

Laughlin called for a work session to be scheduled as soon as possible for the Council to consider multiple 

City projects on the horizon and to start a Capital Improvements Plan to determine funding options and 

prioritization of projects.  The council set Monday, November 9, 2020 at 6:00 p.m. to hold the work session. 

 

Resolution 1949 –Requesting Reimbursement from the Iowa COVID-19 Government Relief Fund. / Move to 

action. 

Edgar said the State suggested that a new resolution should be drafted without listing a specific amount so 

that the State is able to give local governments more relief funding from the Iowa Cares Act.  Edgar said the 

resolution was revised to not state a specific amount.   

Motion by Sexton, second by Goodweiler to approve Resolution 1949.  AYES:  Sexton, Goodweiler, 

Stoolman, Miller, Dean.  NAYS:  None.  Motion carried. 

 

CITY ADMINISTRATOR REPORT 

Jones reported that he was preparing the planning & design loan application for the waste water treatment plant 

to meet the January deadline.  Jones provided estimated costs for providing an adequate parking surface on the 

former Casey’s site.  Jones said the mural project is intended to be placed on the north end of the property and 

used a back drop for the parking lot.  Jones said the base and frame to hold the mural would be constructed in-

house at a cost of approximately $4000-$5000.  Jones added that paving the parking lot with concrete (in-

house) is estimated at $20,000 or $15,000 if chip and seal were used.  Goodweiler questioned why the City 

was re-surfacing the property and said he remembered the agreement with Casey’s was for them to do that.  

Jones responded that the City Attorney would respond to that question. 

 

CITY ATTORNEY REPORT 

Olson said he had been in conversations with Casey’s legal team and that per the agreement signed between 

both parties in August 2019, the final agreement was that Casey’s would “lay gravel and chip & seal level with 

the slab foundation”.  Olson said they did that and will do no more even though the original request was a 

parking lot.  Olson further stated that he directed City staff (Edgar) who had been holding a rebate check from 

Casey’s until the issue was resolved to send the check to Casey’s immediately.   

 

STAFF REPORTS  

No reports. 

 

COMMENTS FROM MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS 

Dean stated that he would like to see the tornado siren (located just north of Loethen Ridge Estates) moved 

before the spring as part of the Greenview connection project.  Dean expressed his concern that siren be 

operational before the next tornado season.   Goodale responded that there were plans to move the siren this 

fall. 

 

Sexton asked if the City was receiving reimbursement from the State of Iowa for any expenses incurred on the 

I-80 widening project that has now been pushed off a couple of years.  Edgar responded that the City had been 

reimbursed as expenses have been incurred and that the City has been reimbursed timely. 

 

Laughlin asked Council members to consider volunteering to pass out hot cocoa at the reverse parade during 

Christmas Past. 

 



 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

Motion to adjourn the regular meeting by Dean, second by Miller.  Motion carried on a voice vote.  City 

Council meeting adjourned at 9:12 p.m.  

 

 

              

                           _________________________________________  

                                        Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

 

 

ATTEST: ______________________________________________ 

                   Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk  



 

 

 
 

 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  November 16, 2020 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Motion to Approve for the “Down Under” located at 102 W. Main Street 

Liquor License Renewal. 

CITY GOAL: Promote quality of life including public safety, community pride events, 

strong citizen involvement, parks and recreation opportunities and 

investment. 

PREPARED BY: Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk 

DATE:  November 12, 2020  

     

BACKGROUND:  

 
Approve Class C Liquor License (LC) (Commercial) with Sunday sales for: 

 

The Down Under, 102 West Main Street, West Branch, IA. 

 

Renewal is effective December 1, 2020 – November 30, 2021. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Motion – Move to Action 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Consent Item 3 Consent Item 2 



 

 

 

 
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  November 16, 2020 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution 1950 – Approving $1,500 Contribution to the West Branch 

Community Development Group for Assistance in Funding Expenses Related 

to the Christmas Past Ice Skating Rink.   

CITY GOAL: Promote quality of life including public safety, community pride events, 

strong citizen involvement, parks and recreation opportunities and 

investment. 

PREPARED BY: Jessi Simon, CDG Executive Director   

DATE:  November 12, 2020  

     

BACKGROUND:  

2020 “Christmas Past festival – Update provided by Community Development Group (CDG) 

Executive Director, Jessi Simon,  This year the event will be on Thursday, December 3 at 12 noon; 

and end Sunday, December 6 at 5pm.    

 

 
 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Resolution 1950 – Move to Action 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Consent Item 3 



 

 

RESOLUTION 1950 

 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING $1,500 CONTRIBUTION TO THE WEST BRANCH 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT GROUP FOR ASSISTANCE IN FUNDING EXPENSES 

RELATED TO THE CHRISTMAS PAST ICE SKATING RINK.  
 

 WHEREAS, the 2020 Christmas Past Festival is coordinated and primarily funded by the West 

Branch Community Development Group (CDG); and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of West Branch, City Council desires to assist the CDG with the expenses 

associated with the Ice Skating Rink venue which will highlighted as a Christmas Past Festival; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the amount of $1,500 has been directed by the City Council of the City of West 

Branch, to be contributed to the fund raising effort funding the Ice Rink venue for this year’s festival; and 

 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Administrator is hereby directed to affect all 

necessary task to complete this resolution approving $1,500 as a contribution to the West Branch 

Community Development Group for assistance in funding expenses related to the Christmas Past Ice 

Skating Rink.  Further, the Mayor and City Clerk are hereby directed to execute any and all documentation 

necessary to complete said transaction without further approval. 

 

   Passed and approved this 16th day of November, 2020. 

 

 

 

 

       ____________________________ 

       Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_____________________________________ 

Redmond Jones II, City Administrator /Clerk 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  November 16, 2020 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Motion to Approve the Claims Report. 

CITY GOAL: Establish a sound and sustainable government supported by professionalism, 

progressive thinking and modernizing the organization. 

PREPARED BY: Gordon Edgar, Finance Director 

DATE:  November 12, 2020  

     

BACKGROUND:  

These are routine expenditures that include such items as payroll, budget expenditures, and other 

financial items that relate to City Council approved items and/or other day to day operational 

disclosures. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Claims Report – Move to Action 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Consent Item 4 



EXPENDITURES 11/16/2020

AERO RENTAL INC EQUIPMENT RENTAL 206.30        
ALLIANT ENERGY ALLIANT ENERGY 9,340.41    
AT & T MOBILITY WIRELESS SERVICE 389.28        
BARRON MOTOR SUPPLY MINOR EQUIPMENT & SUPPLIES 214.63        
BEAN & BEAN GRAVE OPENING 550.00        
BROWN'S WEST BRANCH TIRES & INSTALLATION 1,757.91    
BUSINESS RADIO SALES BATTERIES 381.20        
CATHERINE STEEN TELEPHONE ACCESSORIES 32.02          
CEDAR COUNTY RECORDER RECORDING FEES 28.00          
CEDAR COUNTY TRANSFER STATION TRASH DISPOSAL 31.00          
DAVE'S WELDING & REPAIR SUPPLIES 75.00          
DES MOINES STAMP MFG CO OFFICE SUPPLIES 32.40          
EARL MAY NURSERY & GARDEN STRAW BALES 119.88        
GIERKE-ROBINSON COMPANY INC REBAR 780.00        
HD SUPPLY CONST AND INDUST SUPPLIES 65.00          
HEMMEN CRAIG OR JEAN BUILDING INCENTIVE PAYMENT 915.17        
HOLIDAY INN DES MOINES AIRPORT LODGING - L BRICK 403.20        
HUEBBE MARY T OR TOBIOUS A BUILDING INCENTIVE PAYMENT 620.54        
IOWA ASSN. MUN. UTILITIES SAFETY TRAINING 733.51        
JESSICA SCHAFER REFUND-CHRISTMAS CLUB WITHHOLDING 30.00          
JOHNSON COUNTY REFUSE INC. RECYCLING & TRASH OCT 2020 15,477.00  
KILER, KEVIN L OR KAY A BUILDING INCENTIVE PAYMENT 1,182.95    
KIRKWOOD COMM. COLLEGE TRAINING 15.00          
LENOCH & CILEK KEY 23.92          
LINN COUNTY R.E.C. STREET LIGHTS 184.52        
MERIDITH COLEMAN BUILDING INCENTIVE PAYMENT 1,018.53    
PORT 'O' JONNY INC. SERVICE-WAPSI PARK 108.00        
PYRAMID SERVICES INC. MAINTENANCE & REPAIR SUPPLIES 207.87        
QUILL CORP SUPPLIES 235.72        
SCHIMBERG CO MAN HOLE REPLACEMENT 947.42        
STATE HYGIENIC LAB LAB ANALYSIS 57.00          
WERLING ABSRACT COMPANY ABSTRACT UPDATE-CASEY'S MARKET 425.00        
WEST BRANCH ANIMAL CLINIC TRAP/NEUTER CAT PROGRAM 55.00          
WEST BRANCH TIMES LEGAL PUBLICATIONS & ADVERTISING 1,008.27    
WEX BANK WEX BANK 1,298.07    

TOTAL 38,949.72  

PAYROLL 11/13/2020 48,138.26  



PAID BETWEEN MEETINGS

CEDAR COUNTY CO-OP VEHICLE FUEL 824.73        
KEVIN & RACHEL WAUL UTILITY REFUND 40.96          
MEGAN HOFFMAN CLEANING SERVICE 306.00        

TOTAL 1,171.69    

 GRAND TOTAL EXPENDITURES 88,259.67  

FUND TOTALS
001   GENERAL FUND 51,518.39  
022   CIVIC CENTER 5,753.49    
031   LIBRARY 470.39        
110   ROAD USE TAX 5,816.50    
112   TRUST AND AGENCY
600   WATER FUND 10,233.25  
610   SEWER FUND 9,249.86    

-              
GRAND TOTAL 88,259.67  









FUND OCT

001  GENERAL FUND 630,204.53      
022  CIVIC CENTER 8,557.71           
031  LIBRARY 12,224.63        
036  TORT LIABILITY 19,625.36        
110  ROAD USE TAX 20,081.05        
112  TRUST & AGENCY 124,407.01      
119  EMERGENCY TAX FUND 17,140.18        
121  LOCAL OPTION SALES TAX 20,282.27        
125  TIF 231,512.45      
226  DEBT SERVICE 162,712.35      
312 DOWNTOWN EAST REDEVELOPMENT 100.00              
500  CEMETERY PERPETUAL FUND 420.11              
502  KROUTH INTEREST FUND 0.03                  
600  WATER FUND 50,989.17        
610  SEWER FUND 50,506.69        
740  STORM WATER UTILITY 5,151.94           
TOTAL 1,353,915.48  

 REVENUE-FISCAL YEAR 2021



 

 

 
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  November 2, 2020 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Third (Final) Reading of Ordinance 781 – Amending Title “Traffic and 

Vehicles” Chapter 65 “Stop or Yield Required”.  

CITY GOAL: Establish a sound and sustainable government supported by professionalism, 

progressive thinking and modernizing the organization. 

PREPARED BY: Gordon Edgar, Finance Director 

DATE:  October 28, 2020  

     

BACKGROUND:  

Recommend a Stop Sign to be Place on Dawson Drive Where it Meets Prairie View Dr. 

The Police Department would like a stop sign to be placed on Dawson Drive (north bound) where 

is intersects with Prairie View Drive.  
 
Code 65.02 Stop Required 

Every Driver of a vehicle shall stop before entering an intersection as required herein: 

On Dawson Street where it intersects with Prairie View Drive. 
 
Both the Police Department and Public Works Department reviewed the request to making a 3 way 

stop at Dawson Drive and Prairie View Drive.  After review the line of sight and at various speeds 

around the speed limit of 25 mph, it is concluding that a 3 way stop is not needed at this time.  This 

position may change and/or be reviewed in the future.    

 

Recommend a Stop Sign to be Place on Prairie View Drive Where it Meets Cedar / Johnson Road. 

The police department would like to request a stop sign to be place on Prairie View Drive where it 

intersects with Cedar/Johnson Road, north and east approach.  
 
Code 65.02 Stop Required 

Every Driver of a vehicle shall stop before entering an intersection as required herein: 

Prairie View Drive where it intersects with Cedar / Johnson County Road, north and west 

approach. 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Second Reading of Ordinance 781–Move to Action 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Non Consent Item 1  

rjonesii
Typewritten Text
***



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

ORDINANCE 781 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING TITLE "TRAFFIC AND VEHICLES" CHAPTER 65 

"STOP OR YIELD REQUIRED". 

 

WHEREAS, the West Branch City Council finds it in the best interest of the residents of 

West Branch to have a stop sign installed on Dawson Drive (north bound) where it intersects with 

Prairie View Drive and a stop sign installed on Prairie View Drive where it intersects with Cedar / 

Johnson Road (North, West, approach) in order to provide for the safety of the West Branch 

Community. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the City Council of the City of West Branch, Cedar 

County, Iowa: 
 
Section 1. Amendment.  The Code of Ordinances is hereby amended by the City Council of West 

Branch, Iowa by adding the following language to Title, "TRAFFIC AND VEHICLES", Chapter 

65, "STOP OR YIELD REQUIRED", Section 65.02, STOP REQUIRED. 
 
 61.  The north bound lane of Dawson Drive to its intersection with Prairie View Drive. 

62.  Prairie View Drive on the north and west approach to its intersection with Cedar / 

Johnson Road. 
 
Section 2. Conflicts.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances not specifically provided for and in 

conflict with the provisions of this ordinance are hereby repealed. 
 
Section 3. Adjudication.  If any section, provision, or part of this ordinance shall be adjudged to be 

invalid or unconstitutional, such adjudication shall not affect the validity of the ordinance as a whole 

or any section, provision or part thereof not adjudged invalid or unconstitutional. 
 
Section 4.  Effective Date.  This ordinance shall be in full force and effect after its passage, approval 

and publication as required by law. 
 

* * * * * * * * * * * * * * 
 

Passed and approved this 16th day of November, 2020. 
 
First Reading:    October 19, 2020 

Second Reading: November 2, 2020 

Third Reading:      November 16, 2020 

 

 

              

      ________________________________ 

       Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_____________________________________ 

Redmond Jones II, City Administrator/Clerk 

 



 

 

 
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  November 16, 2020 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Third (Final) Reading of Ordinance 778 – An Ordinance Amending 

Chapter 165; Entitled, “Zoning Regulations”.    

CITY GOAL: Develop, maintain and rebuild safe, clean, diverse, healthy, neighborhoods, 

including partnering with the school district. 

PREPARED BY: Redmond Jones, City Administrator / Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk 

DATE:  November 12, 2020  

     

BACKGROUND:  
 
The Planning & Zoning Commission of the City of West Branch, Iowa, believes that the clarification 

of certain sections in the Zoning Code will lead to a clearer understanding of the Code’s 

requirements.  A more uniform and consistent wording in the language contained within certain 

sections in the Zoning Code will aide in making the Zoning Code more navigable and lead to more 

consistent interpretation of the requirements.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approve the Third Reading of Ordinance 778 – Move to Action  
 
REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Non Consent Item 2 



 

 

ORDINANCE 778 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 165; ENTITLED “ZONING 

REGULATIONS.” 

 
 WHEREAS, the Planning & Zoning Commission of the City of West Branch, Iowa, 

believes that the clarification of certain sections in the Zoning Code will lead to a clearer 

understanding of the Code’s requirements; and 

  

 WHEREAS, the Planning & Zoning Commission of the City of West Branch, Iowa, 

believes that a more uniform and consistent wording in the language contained within certain 

sections in the Zoning Code will aide in making the Zoning Code more navigable and lead to more 

consistent interpretation of the requirements; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the Planning & Zoning Commission recommends to the City Council of the 

City of West Branch, adoption of these amendment recommendations in the Zoning code; and 

  

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of West Branch, Iowa has reviewed these 

recommendations and concurs with the Planning & Zoning Commission. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED: 

1. BE IT ENACTED by the City Council of West Branch, Iowa, that Chapter 165 “ZONING 

REGULATIONS” of the Code of West Branch, Iowa is hereby amended by revising the 

following subsections to Chapter 165. 

 

165.12 CORNER LOTS. 

 

165.12 – Amend by adding number 4: 

 

4. Corner lots with a frontage ratio of not more than 2;3, the narrowest frontage shall be 

considered the front yard to determine the required rear yard set-back.  Corner lots 

with a lot frontage ratio of greater than 2:3, either frontage can be considered the 

front yard to determine the required rear yard set-back.  

 

Passed and approved this 16th day of November, 2020. 

 

First Reading:          October 19, 2020                

Second Reading:      November 2, 2020 

Third Reading:         November 16, 2020                     

 

 

                                                                              

_________________________________ 

                                                                                      Roger Laughlin, Mayor  

Attest:  

________________________________ 

Leslie Brick, Deputy Clerk 



 

 

  
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  November 16, 2020 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Public Hearing: On Request for Proposals to Dispose of and Develop 

Property, West Branch, Iowa. 

CITY GOAL: Develop, maintain and rebuild safe, clean, diverse, healthy, neighborhoods, 

including partnering with the school district. 

PREPARED BY: Redmond Jones II, City Administrator 

DATE:  November 12, 2020  
     
BACKGROUND:  

 

 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING AND REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS TO DISPOSE OF AND 

DEVELOP PROPERTY 

 

The City Council of the City of West Branch, Iowa, will meet on the 16th day of November, 2020, 

at the City Hall, 110 N. Poplar Street, in the City, at 7:00 o’clock p.m., for the purpose of conducting 

a public hearing on the proposal to dispose of certain real property herein described as the 

Development Property. 

 

The City owns certain real property described as Lot B of Lot 4, Rummells Commercial Subdivision, 

West Branch, Iowa, according to the recorded plat thereof (the “Development Property”) which is 

located in the West Branch Urban Renewal Area (the “Urban Renewal Area”). 

 

The City has received and intends to accept a proposal for the development of the Development 

Property submitted by Newport Fabricating, LLC, unless a proposal is submitted which better 

represents the best interest of the City with respect to the development of the Development Property. 

 

At the aforementioned time and place for the Public Hearing, Oral or written comments or 

objections may be filed or made.  Following the public hearing, the City Council will consider the 

submitted proposals for acceptance. 

 

 

 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Open Public Hearing / Close Public Hearing 
 
REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Non Consent Item 3 



 

 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING AND REQUEST FOR  

PROPOSALS TO DISPOSE OF AND DEVELOP PROPERTY 

The City Council of the City of West Branch, Iowa, will meet on the 16th day of November, 

2020, at the City Hall, 110 N. Poplar Street, in the City, at 7:00 o’clock p.m., for the purpose of 

conducting a public hearing on the proposal to dispose of certain real property herein described as 

the Development Property. 

The City owns certain real property described as Lot B of Lot 4, Rummells Commercial 

Subdivision, West Branch, Iowa, according to the recorded plat thereof (the “Development 

Property”) which is located in the West Branch Urban Renewal Area (the “Urban Renewal Area”). 

The City intends to enter into a purchase agreement with a Newport Fabricating, LLC, to sell 

said Development Property for $80,000 and the construction of an industrial business on the 

Development Property (the “Development Rights”) in consideration of the developer’s undertakings 

and efforts to develop the Development Property and perform as provided in the development 

agreement.  Proposals for the development of the Development Property, including the purchase 

thereof at fair market value and schedule of building an industrial building on the Development 

Property, must be received in the office of the City Clerk at City Hall by no later than 10:00 a.m. on 

November 16th, 2020.  Proposals shall set forth the developer’s plan for the development of the 

Development Property in accordance with the City’s development objectives for the Development 

Property which include building of an industrial building (the “Development Improvements”). The 

Development Property will be sold to the developer whose proposal, if carried out, would be in the 

best interests of the City and would best tailor the future use of the Development Property to the 

City’s development objectives.  The City reserves the right to consider the legal and financial ability 

of developers submitting proposals to carry out the desired development of the Development 

Property.  Furthermore, the City reserves the right to negotiate for proposals with respect to the 

desired development of the Development Property. 

The City has received and intends to accept a proposal for the development of the 

Development Property submitted by Newport Fabricating, LLC, unless a proposal is submitted 

which better represents the best interests of the City with respect to the development of the 

Development Property. 

At the aforementioned time and place for the public hearing, oral or written comments or 

objections may be filed or made.  Following the public hearing, the City Council will consider the 

submitted proposals for acceptance. 

Redmond Jones II 

City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  November 16, 2020 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution 1951 – Resolution Approving the Disposal of Lot B of Lot 4 of 

Rummells Commercial Subdivision and Approving the Purchase Agreement 

with Newport Fabricating, LLC. 

CITY GOAL: Develop, maintain and rebuild safe, clean, diverse, healthy, neighborhoods, 

including partnering with the school district. 

PREPARED BY: Redmond Jones II, City Administrator / Kevin Olson, City Attorney 

DATE:  November 12, 2020  

     

BACKGROUND:  

 

Croell Redi-mix operated on a four-acre parcel at 325 East Green Street which is ranged north to 

south between Main Street and College Street.  While planning for a plant expansion at that site 

(downtown), the city purchased land in the West Branch Industrial park and proposed a land swap. 

 

Instead of having this industrial use expand its operations in this transitional area that exist between 

a celebrated historic downtown with 14 buildings on the National Historic Register, and a well-

established neighborhood known for its mature tree line and eclectic housing; the city and Croell 

agreed on a land swap that exchanged 12 acres of industrial park property for the aforementioned 4 

acre site.  The city still retained a portion of the newly purchased industrial park land.  At the new 

site, the city kept the property described as “Lot B of Lot 4 of Rummells Commercial Subdivision, 

West Branch, Iowa”.  

 

Now, the City is considering accepting purchase agreement with Newport Fabricating, LLC to sell 

said development property for $80,000 and the construction of an industrial business on the 

aforementioned property. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve the Resolution 1951 – Move to Action 
 
REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Non Consent Item 4 











 

 

 

 

 
Prepared by:  Kevin D. Olson, West Branch City Attorney, PO Box 5640, Coralville, Iowa 52241 (319)351-2277 

Return to:  City of West Branch, 110 N. Poplar Street, West Branch, Iowa 52358 

 

 

RESOLUTION 1951 

 

RESOLUTION APPROVING THE DISPOSAL OF LOT B OF LOT 4 OF RUMMELLS 

COMMERCIAL SUBDIVISION AND APPROVING THE PURCHASE AGREEMENT 

WITH NEWPORT FABRICATING, LLC. 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of West Branch is the owner of that certain real estate legally 

described as Lot B of Lot 4 of Rummells Commercial Subdivision, West Branch, Iowa (the 

“Property”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City and Newport Fabricating, LLC (“Newport”), have negotiated a 

Purchase Agreement whereby the City will sell the Property to Newport for the sum of $80,000.00 

and that Newport will construct a location for its business on the Property; and 
 
 WHEREAS, because the City purchased the Property using tax increment revenues, the 

City was required to hold a public hearing and ask for additional proposals for said Property 

pursuant to Chapter 403 of the Code of Iowa; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City has received no additional proposals for said Property; and 
 
 WHEREAS, a public hearing has been held on the disposal of the Property to Newport as 

required by law, which was preceded by published notice of the same. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of West 

Branch, Cedar County, Iowa, that the proposal to dispose of the Property to Newport via Purchase 

Agreement is hereby approved. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Mayor and City Clerk are directed to execute 

the Purchase Agreement on behalf of the City. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Mayor and City Clerk, with advice of the City 

Attorney, are hereby directed to execute the Warranty Deed for the Property, and any and all other 

documentation necessary to finalize this transaction. 

 

   Passed and approved this 16th day of November, 2020. 

 

 

      ______________________________ 

      Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

____________________________________ 

Redmond Jones II, City Administrator/Clerk 



 

 

  
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  November 16, 2020 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Resolution 1952 – A Resolution Approving the Site Plan of Newport 

Fabricating, LLC. Located at 145 Fawcett Drive. 

CITY GOAL: Promote quality of life including public safety, community pride events, 

strong citizen involvement, parks and recreation opportunities and 

investment. 

PREPARED BY: Kevin Olson, City Attorney  

DATE:  November 12, 2020  
     
 

BACKGROUND:  

 

Newport Fabricating, LLC complying with the undertakings as subscribed in it development 

agreement related to the purchasing Lot B of Lot 4 of Rummells Commercial Subdivision, West 

Branch, Iowa (the “Property”), from the City of West Branch; and WHEREAS, Newport Fab & 

Machine submitted a proposed Site Plan for the Property; and WHEREAS, the Planning and 

Zoning Commission has reviewed said Site Plan and recommended approval of the same. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approve Resolution 1952 – Move to Action 
 
REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

  

Non Consent Item 5 



CIVIL
COVER SHEETC0.00

LEGEND AND GENERAL NOTESC0.01

EXISTING CONDITIONS AND TOPOGRAPHICAL PLANC1.00
SITE AND UTILITY PLANC2.00

GENERAL NOTESC0.02

SHEET INDEX

SCOPE OF WORK:
PROPOSED OFFICE AND SHOP SPACE WITH
ASSOCIATED PARKING LOT AND STORMWATER
FACILITIES.

CONTACT PERSON:
BRIAN BOELK
AXIOM CONSULTANTS, LLC
60 E. COURT STREET, UNIT 3
IOWA CITY, IOWA 52240-3833
PHONE: 319-519-6220
EMAIL: BBOELK@AXIOM-CON.COM

DRAWINGS FOR PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS

CITY OF WEST BRANCH, IOWA

UTILITY CONTACTSPROJECT INFORMATIONAPPLICANT INFORMATION
OWNER/APPLICANT :
NATE FREES
NEWPORT FABRICATING, LLC
NATE@NEWPORTFABMACHINE.COM

DEVELOPER'S ATTORNEY:

ALLIANT ENERGY
CONTACT NAME : LAURA BARR
CONTACT PHONE: 319-286-1315
CONTACT EMAIL:

IOWA COMMUNICATIONS NETWORK (ICN)/CENTURY LINK
CONTACT NAME : SHANNON MARLOW
CONTACT PHONE: 515-725-4402
CONTACT EMAIL: SHANNON.MARLOW@IOWA.GOV

LINN COUNTY REC
CONTACT NAME : JOHNA NUNEMAKER
CONTACT PHONE: 319-377-1587
CONTACT EMAIL: NUNEMAKER@LINCOUNTYREC.COM

MEDIACOM
CONTACT NAME : CARL NORTON
CONTACT PHONE: 319-594-6201
CONTACT EMAIL: CNORTON@MEDIACOMC.COM

LIBERTY COMMUNICATIONS
CONTACT NAME : JERRY MELICK
CONTACT PHONE: 319-627-2145
CONTACT EMAIL: LIBERTY@CORP.LCOM.NET

CITY OF WEST BRANCH
CONTACT NAME : MATT GOODALE
CONTACT PHONE: 319-643-588
CONTACT EMAIL: WBCITY@NETINS.NET

LOT B OF LOT 4 RUMMELLS COMMERCIAL SUBDIVISION 8-79-4.

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

BY: _______________________________ DATE: ____________

CITY APPROVAL

NEWPORT FAB AND MACHINE

IN THE CITY OF WEST BRANCH, CEDAR COUNTY, IOWA
SITE PLAN

NOTE:
THE PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS INCLUDED IN THESE DRAWINGS HAVE BEEN DESIGNED IN ACCORDANCE WITH CITY OF WEST
BRANCH REQUIREMENTS AND THE IOWA STATEWIDE URBAN DESIGN AND SPECIFICATIONS (SUDAS), LATEST ADDITION, UNLESS
NOTED OTHERWISE ON THE PLANS.

THE FOLLOWING DESIGN EXCEPTIONS ARE REQUIRED:
N/A

16503
BOELK

BRIAN A.

AWOI

LI
CE

NS
ED

PROFESS IONAL
ENG

INEER

I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS ENGINEERING DOCUMENT WAS PREPARED BY ME OR
UNDER MY DIRECT PERSONAL SUPERVISION AND THAT I AM A DULY LICENSED
PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER UNDER THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF IOWA.

____________________________________________________________________
SIGNED:                                                                                DATE:

BRIAN A. BOELK, P.E.

LICENSE NUMBER 16503.

MY LICENSE RENEWAL DATE IS DECEMBER 31, 2020.

PAGES OR SHEETS COVERED BY THIS SEAL:  _________________________________ALL

SITE INFORMATION
PURPOSE OF DEVELOPMENT
PROPOSED OFFICE AND SHOP BUILDINGS

ZONING INFORMATION
CURRENT ZONING HCI (HIGHWAY COMMERCIAL INDUSTRIAL DISTRICT)

MINIMUM LOT REQUIREMENTS
FRONT YARD SETBACK 25 FEET
REAR YARD SETBACK -
SIDE YARD SETBACK -

PARKING REQUIREMENTS
PARKING STALL DIMENSIONS: 10 FEET X 18 FEET

REQUIRED PARKING = 1 STALL PER 2 EMPLOYEES ON MAXIMUM WORK SHIFT
MAXIMUM EMPLOYEES ON SHIFT = 5

3 PARKING STALLS REQUIRED
1 ADA PARKING STALL REQUIRED

PROPOSED PARKING
7 - STALLS PROVIDED (TOTAL)
1 - VAN ACCESSIBLE STALLS

AREA CALCULATIONS

DESCRIPTION SF ACRES PERCENT
EXISTING PAVEMENT: 0 0 0%
EXISTING ROOF: 0 0 0%
EXISTING OPEN SPACE 175,475 4.03 100%
EXISTING TOTAL - 4.03 100%

PROPOSED PAVEMENT: 7,976 0.18 5%
PROPOSED ROOF*: 9,900 0.23 6%
PROPOSED OPEN SPACE 157,599 3.62 89%
PROPOSED TOTAL - 4.03 100%
* INCLUDES CANOPY

CONSTRUCTION SCHEDULE
START DATE -  FALL 2020
SITE UTILITIES - FALL 2020
SITE PAVING - SPRING 2021
SITE RESTORATION - SPRING 2021
COMPLETION DATE - SPRING 2021

DETENTION POND & EROSION CONTROL PLANC3.00

SH
EE

T 
N

U
M

BE
R:

SH
EE

T 
N

AM
E:

DR
AW

IN
G 

LO
G

EN
GI

N
EE

R:

RE
V

DA
TE

DE
SC

RI
PT

IO
N

 O
F 

CH
AN

GE
S

PR
O

JE
CT

 N
AM

E:

CL
IE

N
T 

N
AM

E:

IS
SU

ED
 F

O
R:

PR
O

JE
CT

 N
0.

:
DA

TE
 IS

SU
ED

:
PR

O
JE

CT
 M

AN
AG

ER
:

CU
RR

EN
T 

RE
V:

W
W

W
.A

XI
O

M
-C

O
N

.C
O

M
 |

 (3
19

) 5
19

-6
22

0

 Nov 05, 2020 - 10:42am S:\PROJECTS\2020\200171\05 Design\Civil-Survey\Sheets\200171 - C0.00.dwg

20
-0

17
1

C0
.0

0
BO

EL
K

N
EW

PO
RT

 F
AB

 &
 M

AC
HI

N
E

CO
VE

R 
SH

EE
T

N
O

V.
 0

5,
 2

02
0

N
EW

PO
RT

 F
AB

 &
 M

AC
HI

N
E

B

N
O

T 
FO

R 
CO

N
ST

RU
CT

IO
N

FAWCETT DRIVE

BA
KE

R 
AV

E

CH
AR

LE
S 

AV
E

I-80

S 
DW

O
N

EY
 S

T

EAST MAIN STREET

W
EST BRANCH

W
APSINONOC

CREEK

PROJECT LOCATION

B
10

-2
9-

20
20

BL
DG

 R
EV

IS
IO

N



LEGEND:
UTILITIES

CHILLED WATER: SUPPLY

CHILLED WATER: RETURN

COMMUNICATIONS

OVERHEAD LINE

ELECTRIC

FIBER OPTIC

GAS

SANITARY SEWER

CONDENSATE

STEAM: HIGH PRESSURE

STEAM: LOW PRESSURE

STORM

WATER: DOMESTIC

WATER: WELL

SUBDRAIN

EXISTING PROPOSED

COMMUNICATIONS HANDHOLE

COMMUNICATIONS PEDESTAL

COMMUNICATIONS MANHOLE

GUY WIRE ANCHOR

UTILITY POLE

UTILITY POLE WITH LIGHT

ELECTRIC MANHOLE

ELECTRIC TRANSFORMER

TRAFFIC HANDHOLE

TRAFFIC MANHOLE

LIGHT POLE

FIBER OPTIC HANDHOLE

FIBER OPTIC MANHOLE

GAS MANHOLE

GAS VALVE

STORM SEWER MANHOLE

STORM SEWER INTAKE

HYDRANT

SANITARY SEWER MANHOLE

SANITARY SEWER CLEANOUT

POST INDICATOR VALVE

WATER VALVE

CURB STOP

WATER MANHOLE

WATER METER

HOSE BIB

YARD HYDRANT

DRINKING FOUNTAIN

FIRE DEPARTMENT CONNECTION

SITE

FENCE: BARB WIRE

FENCE: CHAIN LINK

FENCE: CONSTRUCTION

FENCE: WIRE

FENCE: WOOD

TREE LINE

DELINEATED WETLAND

CONTOUR - INTERMEDIATE

CONTOUR - INDEX

100-YEAR FLOODPLAIN

500-YEAR FLOODPLAIN

FLAG POLE

LANDSCAPE LIGHT

MONITORING WELL

WELL

BOLLARD

TREE: DECIDUOUS

TREE: CONIFEROUS

SIGN

SHRUBBERY

MAIL BOX

POST

PARKING METER

STREAM CENTERLINE

FENCE: VINYL

EXISTING PROPOSED

W

ST

SS

FO

FO

G

E

E

C

C

C

TRFC

TRFC

CO

W
MW

WF

WM

SEE LANDSCAPE PLAN

SEE LANDSCAPE PLAN

SEE LANDSCAPE PLAN

MAIL

FDC

HB

100

101

CO

OH

E

FO

G

SS

ST

SD

W

WELL

CHWS

CHWR

CND

HPS

LPS

SURFACE RESTORATION NOTES
1. ONLY DISTURBED AREAS NOT PAVED OR HARD SURFACED SHALL RECEIVE MINIMUM 4"

TOPSOIL.  SCARIFY AREAS TO RECEIVE TOPSOIL TO A MIN. DEPTH OF 4".  REMOVE ALL
STONES, WOOD AND DEBRIS LARGER THAN 2" FROM AREAS TO RECEIVE TOPSOIL.  DO
NOT COMPACT TOPSOIL.

2. ALL DISTURBED AREAS SHALL BE SEEDED, FERTILIZED AND MULCHED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH SUDAS SECTION 9010.

3. SEED ALL DISTURBED AREAS NOT TO BE HARD SURFACED, AND NOT TO HAVE TOPSOIL
SPREAD, WITH TYPE 1 EROSION CONTROL MIXTURE PER SUDAS SECTION 9010.

4. APPLY SEED AT THE RATES INDICATED IN THE PROJECT SPECIFICATIONS.

5. MAINTAIN SEEDED AREAS UNTIL AN ADEQUATE STAND OF GRASS HAS BEEN
ESTABLISHED.  RESEED ANY AREAS AS NECESSARY TO STABILIZE SOIL PER PROJECT
SPECIFICATIONS.

6. EXISTING FACILITIES (CURBS, PAVEMENT, UTILITIES, ETC.) THAT ARE TO REMAIN AND
DAMAGED BY THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE REPAIRED OR REPLACED BY THE CONTRACTOR
AT NO ADDITIONAL EXPENSE TO THE OWNER.

GENERAL NOTES
1. ALL CONSTRUCTION SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE STATEWIDE URBAN DESIGN

AND SPECIFICATIONS (SUDAS), UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED ON THE DRAWINGS.

2. THE LOCATIONS OF UTILITY MAINS, STRUCTURES AND SERVICE CONNECTIONS PLOTTED
ON THIS DRAWING ARE APPROXIMATE ONLY AND WERE OBTAINED FROM PLANS OF
RECORD.  THERE MAY BE OTHER EXISTING UTILITY MAINS, STRUCTURES AND SERVICE
CONNECTIONS NOT KNOWN AND MAY NOT SHOWN ON THIS DRAWING.

3. NOTIFY UTILITY COMPANIES WHOSE FACILITIES ARE SHOWN ON THE PLANS OR KNOWN
TO BE WITHIN CONSTRUCTION LIMITS OF THE SCHEDULE PRIOR TO EACH STAGE OF
CONSTRUCTION.

4. PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL UNCOVER EXISTING UTILITIES AT
CRITICAL LOCATIONS TO VERIFY EXACT HORIZONTAL AND VERTICAL LOCATION.

5. IOWA CODE 480, UNDERGROUND FACILITIES INFORMATION, REQUIRES VERBAL NOTICE
TO IOWA ONE-CALL 1-800-292-8989, NOT LESS THAN 48 HOURS BEFORE EXCAVATING,
EXCLUDING WEEKENDS AND HOLIDAYS.

6. NOTIFY THE APPROPRIATE GOVERNING AUTHORITY 48 - 72 HOURS PRIOR TO BEGINNING
CONSTRUCTION WITHIN PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY.  THE CITY OF WEST BRANCH SHALL BE
THE PUBLIC AGENCY RESPONSIBLE FOR INSPECTION DURING CONSTRUCTION OF THE
PUBLIC PORTIONS OF THE PROJECT.

7. NO WORK SHALL BE PERFORMED BEYOND THE PROJECT LIMITS WITHOUT PRIOR
AUTHORIZATION FROM THE OWNER OR OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE.

8. PROVIDE TRAFFIC AND PEDESTRIAN CONTROL MEASURES (SIGNS, BARRICADES,
FLAGGERS, ETC.) IN COMPLIANCE WITH PART VI OF THE MANUAL ON UNIFORM TRAFFIC
CONTROL DEVICES (MUTCD) LATEST EDITION.

9. ADJUST ALL VALVES, MANHOLES, CASTINGS, GAS VENTS, ETC., TO MATCH THE NEW
SURFACE.  ADJUSTMENT SHALL BE COORDINATED WITH THE UTILITY COMPANIES AND
THE COST FOR ALL ADJUSTMENTS SHALL BE INCIDENTAL TO THE CONSTRUCTION.  AT NO
ADDITIONAL COST TO THE OWNER, REPAIR ANY DAMAGE TO SAID STRUCTURES AND
APPURTENANCES THAT OCCUR DURING CONSTRUCTION.

10. REPLACE ANY PROPERTY MONUMENTS REMOVED OR DESTROYED BY CONSTRUCTION.
MONUMENTS SHALL BE SET BY A LAND SURVEYOR REGISTERED TO PRACTICE IN THE
STATE OF IOWA.

SITE PREPARATION NOTES
1. PROTECT ADJACENT PROPERTY DURING DEMOLITION.

2. DEMOLITION LIMIT LINE IS THE EXISTING PROPERTY LINE UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE.

3. MAINTAIN POSITIVE DRAINAGE ON THE SITE THROUGHOUT THE PROJECT DURATION.

4. PROVIDE WASTE AREAS OR DISPOSAL SITES FOR EXCESS MATERIAL (EXCAVATED
MATERIAL OR BROKEN CONCRETE) WHICH IS NOT DESIRABLE TO BE INCORPORATED INTO
THE WORK INVOLVED ON THIS PROJECT.  NO PAYMENT FOR OVERHAUL WILL BE
ALLOWED FOR MATERIAL HAULED TO THESE SITES.  NO MATERIAL SHALL BE PLACED
WITHIN THE EASEMENTS, UNLESS SPECIFICALLY STATED IN THE PLANS OR APPROVED BY
THE ENGINEER.  DISPOSAL SITES MUST BE APPROVED BY THE ENGINEER.  CONTRACTOR
SHALL APPLY NECESSARY MOISTURE TO THE CONSTRUCTION AREA AND TEMPORARY
HAUL ROADS TO PREVENT THE SPREAD OF DUST.  OFF-SITE DISPOSAL SHALL BE IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE APPLICABLE GOVERNMENTAL REGULATIONS.

5. KEEP ADJACENT PUBLIC STREETS FREE FROM SOIL AND DEBRIS GENERATED BY THE
PROJECT. CLEAN SOIL AND DEBRIS FROM THE ADJACENT STREETS ON A DAILY BASIS.

6. DURING CONSTRUCTION, CONTROL DUST SPREADING FROM ALL WORK AND STAGING
AREAS.

7. REMOVAL OR ABANDONMENT OF PUBLIC UTILITIES SHALL BE FULLY COORDINATED WITH
APPROPRIATE UTILITY SUPPLIER AND REGULATORY AGENCIES.

8. ANY EXISTING FACILITIES (CURBS, PAVEMENT, UTILITIES, ETC.) THAT THE CONTRACTOR'S
OPERATIONS DAMAGE SHALL BE REPAIRED BY THAT CONTRACTOR AT HIS/HER COST.

9. REMOVE ALL DESIGNATED STREETS, DRIVEWAYS, ETC. IN THEIR ENTIRETY.  BACKFILL ALL
EXCAVATIONS WITH COHESIVE MATERIAL COMPACTED TO 98% STANDARD PROCTOR
DRY DENSITY (ASTM D698).

10. WHERE A SECTION OF PAVEMENT, CURB AND GUTTER OR SIDEWALK IS CUT OR
OTHERWISE DAMAGED BY THE CONTRACTOR, THE ENTIRE SECTION SHALL BE REMOVED
AND REPLACED.  PAVEMENT, CURBS, GUTTERS AND SIDEWALKS SHALL BE REMOVED A
MINIMUM OF TWO FEET BEYOND THE EDGE OF THE TRENCH CUT AND TO THE NEAREST
JOINT.

11. SAWCUT EDGES OF PAVEMENT FULL DEPTH PRIOR TO REMOVAL TO PREVENT DAMAGE
TO ADJACENT SLABS AND FIXTURES.

12. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR THE REMOVAL OF ALL EXISTING
CONCRETE STRUCTURES ON THE SITE AS SHOWN ON THE PLANS.  THE REMOVAL
INCLUDES DRIVEWAYS, CURB AND GUTTER, SIDEWALK, AND BASEMENT FOUNDATION
FOOTINGS, FLOOR AND WALLS.  THE REMOVAL ALSO INCLUDES STORM SEWER INTAKES
AND PIPE AS SHOWN ON THE PLANS.

13. IT SHALL BE THE CONTRACTOR'S RESPONSIBILITY TO PROTECT TREES AND SHRUBS NOTED
ON THE PLANS TO REMAIN IN PROJECT AREA FROM DAMAGE DUE TO CONSTRUCTION
ACTIVITY.  PROTECTION INCLUDES, BUT IS NOT LIMITED TO, CONSTRUCTION FENCING
AROUND THE DRIP LINE OF TREES AND PROHIBITING VEHICLE TRAFFIC WITHIN THE DRIP
LINE OF TREES.

14. REMOVAL AND DISPOSAL OF EXISTING TREES AND SHRUBS WITHIN CONSTRUCTION
LIMITS SHALL BE INCIDENTAL TO THE GRADING PORTION OF THE PROJECT.  STUMPS ARE
TO BE GROUND TO TWO FEET BELOW FINISHED GRADE.

15. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL NOTIFY THE ENGINEER IF A TILE IS ENCOUNTERED AND SHALL
INDICATE THE METHOD OF RESOLVING THE CONFLICT.  THE ENGINEER SHALL APPROVE
THE PROPOSED METHOD.  THE LOCATION OF THE FIELD TILE SHALL BE RECORDED ON
THE CONSTRUCTION RECORD DOCUMENTS.

EXISTING FIELD TILE LINES ENCOUNTERED IN THIS PROJECT SHALL BE REPAIRED BY THE
CONTRACTOR IN ONE OF THE FOLLOWING WAYS:

A. CONNECT TILE TO THE NEAREST STORM SEWER.
B. DAYLIGHT TO FINISHED GROUND.
C. REPAIR TILE AND MAINTAIN SERVICE.

GRADING NOTES
1. STRIP EXISTING VEGETATION WITHIN THE GRADING LIMITS AND AREAS TO RECEIVE FILL.

STOCKPILE ON-SITE FOR REUSE IF SUITABLE.

2. PROOF ROLL ALL FILL AREAS TO IDENTIFY SOFT OR DISTURBED AREAS IN THE SUBGRADE.
ALL UNSUITABLE MATERIAL IDENTIFIED SHALL BE REMOVED AND RECOMPACTED.
PROOFROLL WITH 25 TON MINIMUM GROSS VEHICLE WEIGHT.

3. REMOVE AND RECOMPACT AREAS OF SUBGRADE WHICH ARE SOFT OR UNSTABLE TO
MEET SPECIFIED LIMITS FOR DENSITY AND MOISTURE CONTENT.

4. SCARIFY EXISTING SUBGRADE TO A DEPTH OF 12 INCHES AND RECOMPACT TO 98% OF
STANDARD PROCTOR DENSITY (ASTM D698) PRIOR TO PLACEMENT OF FILL.

5. DO NOT PLACE, SPREAD, OR COMPACT ANY FILL MATERIAL DURING UNFAVORABLE
WEATHER CONDITIONS AND DO NOT RESUME COMPACTION OPERATIONS UNTIL
MOISTURE CONTENT AND DENSITY OF IN-PLACE FILL MATERIAL ARE WITHIN SPECIFIED
LIMITS.

6. PLACE FILL MATERIAL IN 9" MAXIMUM LIFTS.

7. FILLS PLACED BELOW LAWN AREAS SHALL BE COMPACTED TO 90% OF MATERIALS
MAXIMUM STANDARD PROCTOR DRY DENSITY (ASTM D698).

8. SCARIFY SUBGRADE TO DEPTH OF 3 INCHES WHERE TOPSOIL IS SCHEDULED.  SCARIFY
AREAS WHERE EQUIPMENT USED FOR HAULING AND SPREADING TOPSOIL HAS CAUSED
COMPACTED SUBSOIL.

9. FILL MATERIAL OBTAINED FROM OFF-SITE SOURCES SHALL BE SOIL OR SOIL AND ROCK
MIXTURE FREE FROM ORGANIC MATTER AND OTHER DELETERIOUS SUBSTANCES.  IT
SHALL CONTAIN NO ROCKS OF 6 INCHES IN GREATEST DIMENSION AND NOT MORE THAN
15% OF THE ROCKS SHALL BE LARGER THAN 2-1/2 INCHES IN GREATEST DIMENSION.

10. SCARIFY AND RECOMPACT THE TOP 9" OF SUBGRADE IN ALL CUT AREAS AFTER ROUGH
GRADING IS COMPLETED.  COMPACT THE ENTIRE PAVING SUBGRADE TO 95% STANDARD
PROCTOR DRY DENSITY TO WITHIN 1.0' OF FINAL SUBGRADE.  THE FINAL 1.0' OF FILL TO
BE COMPACTED TO 98% STANDARD PROCTOR DRY DENSITY (ASTM D698).

11. IN AREAS TO RECEIVE ADDITIONAL FILL OVER EXISTING FILL MATERIALS. REMOVE TOP 12"
OF MATERIAL AND SCARIFY AND RECOMPACT THE NEXT 9" OF RESULTING SUBGRADE.
COMPACT RESULTING SUBGRADE TO 95% STANDARD PROCTOR DRY DENSITY.
SUBSEQUENT FILL TO BE COMPACTED TO 98% STANDARD PROCTOR DRY DENSITY TO
WITHIN 1.0' OF FINAL SUBGRADE.  THE FINAL 1.0' OF FILL TO BE COMPACTED TO 98%
STANDARD PROCTOR DRY DENSITY (ASTM D698).

12. FINISH CONTOURS SHOWN ARE TO TOP OF FINISHED GRADE OR TO TOP OF TOPSOIL.

EROSION CONTROL NOTES
1. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE TEMPORARY EROSION CONTROL, SEDIMENT, AND

DUST CONTROL IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE PROJECT'S STORM
WATER POLLUTION PREVENTION PLAN AND THE STATEWIDE URBAN DESIGN AND
SPECIFICATIONS (SUDAS), UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED. DISTURBED AREA WILL BE
GREATER THAN 1.00 ACRES, A NPDES GENERAL PERMIT #2 REQUIRED.

2. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL INCORPORATE ALL EROSION CONTROL FEATURES INTO THE
PROJECT PRIOR TO DISTURBING THE SOIL.

3. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE TO INSPECT THE TEMPORARY EROSION AND
SEDIMENT CONTROL MEASURES A MINIMUM OF ONCE PER WEEK.  IF A CONTROL
MEASURE HAS BEEN REDUCED IN CAPACITY BY 50% OR MORE, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL
RESTORE SUCH FEATURES TO THEIR ORIGINAL CONDITION IMMEDIATELY, WEATHER
PERMITTING.

4. ERECT SILT FENCE AS SHOWN ON THE PLANS TO LIMIT LOSS OF MATERIAL FROM THE
SITE. DEVICES TO REMAIN IN PLACE AND TO BE MAINTAINED UNTIL A PERMANENT
GROUND COVER IS ESTABLISHED.

5. MINIMIZE SOIL EROSION BY MAINTAINING ALL EXISTING VEGETATIVE GROWTH WITHIN
THE GRADING LIMITS FOR AS LONG AS PRACTICAL.

6. INSTALL A SILT FENCE AROUND ALL STOCKPILED TOPSOIL.

7. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE TEMPORARY SEEDING FOR ALL AREAS THAT ARE
DISTURBED AND OPERATIONS WILL NOT COMMENCE OR PERMANENT SEEDING WILL
NOT BE COMPLETED IN LESS THAN 14 DAYS.

8. SEQUENCE OF EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL EVENTS:

A. INSTALL INLET PROTECTION AROUND EXISTING INTAKES AS INDICATED ON THE
SITE CONSTRUCTION PLAN. USE THESE LOW AREAS AS SEDIMENT BASINS
DURING CONSTRUCTION.

B. INSTALL PERIMETER SILT FENCE AS INDICATED ON THE SITE CONSTRUCTION
PLAN.

C. INSTALL SILT FENCE AROUND ANY TOPSOIL OR EXCESS SOIL STOCKPILES.  APPLY
TEMPORARY SEEDING TO ALL TOPSOIL OR EXCESS SOIL STOCKPILES.

D. INSTALL STONE SUBBASE ON STREET AREAS FOLLOWING COMPLETION OF
GRADING.

E. APPLY TEMPORARY SEEDING TO ALL DENUDED AREAS WHERE CONSTRUCTION
ACTIVITY TEMPORARILY CEASES FOR 14 DAYS OR MORE.  FERTILIZE AND LIME IF
NEEDED.  APPLY MULCH ON SLOPES GREATER THAN 4:1
(HORIZONTAL:VERTICAL).

F. DESTROY TEMPORARY SEEDING AND APPLY PERMANENT SEEDING TO ALL
DISTURBED AREAS NOT TO BE HARD SURFACED.  FERTILIZE AND MULCH
PERMANENT SEEDING AS REQUIRED.  APPLY MULCH AT 1.5 TO 2.0 TONS PER
ACRE ON SLOPES GREATER THAN 4:1.

G. WHEN CONSTRUCTION IS COMPLETE AND THE SITE IS STABILIZED WITH
PERMANENT SEEDING, REMOVE ACCUMULATED SEDIMENT FROM ANY
SEDIMENT BASINS, REMOVE SILT FENCE AND RESEED ANY AREAS DISTURBED BY
THE REMOVALS.

STORMWATER POLLUTION PREVENTION:

THE STORM WATER POLLUTION PREVENTION PLAN (SWPPP) SHALL BE KEPT ON THE
CONSTRUCTION SITE AT ALL TIMES FROM THE DATE CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES BEGIN
TO THE DATE OF FINAL STABILIZATION.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL MAINTAIN THE
SWPPP PER THE REQUIREMENTS OF GENERAL PERMIT NO. 2.  ALL
OPERATORS/CONTRACTORS WORKING ONSITE MUST SIGN THE CERTIFICATION
STATEMENT PROVIDED AND WILL BECOME CO-PERMITTEES ON THE NPDES GENERAL
PERMIT NO. 2 FOR THIS SITE.  ALL OPERATORS/SUBCONTRACTORS WORKING ONSITE
SHALL BE SUPPLIED A COPY OF THE SWPPP BY THE CONTRACTOR AND MUST BE
FAMILIAR WITH ITS CONTENTS.  THE SWPPP MUST BE PERIODICALLY UPDATED TO
SHOW CURRENT EROSION CONTROL PRACTICES PER THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE
GENERAL PERMIT #2.  UPDATED VERSIONS OF THE SWPPP WILL BE PROVIDED TO ALL
OF THE OPERATORS/SUBCONTRACTORS WHOM ARE AFFECTED BY THE CHANGES
MADE TO THE SWPPP.  IT WILL BE THE DUTY OF THE CONTRACTOR TO SEE THAT
THESE REQUIREMENTS ARE MET.

SH
EE

T 
N

U
M

BE
R:

SH
EE

T 
N

AM
E:

DR
AW

IN
G 

LO
G

EN
GI

N
EE

R:

RE
V

DA
TE

DE
SC

RI
PT

IO
N

 O
F 

CH
AN

GE
S

PR
O

JE
CT

 N
AM

E:

CL
IE

N
T 

N
AM

E:

IS
SU

ED
 F

O
R:

PR
O

JE
CT

 N
0.

:
DA

TE
 IS

SU
ED

:
PR

O
JE

CT
 M

AN
AG

ER
:

CU
RR

EN
T 

RE
V:

W
W

W
.A

XI
O

M
-C

O
N

.C
O

M
 |

 (3
19

) 5
19

-6
22

0

 Nov 05, 2020 - 10:42am S:\PROJECTS\2020\200171\05 Design\Civil-Survey\Sheets\200171 - C0.00.dwg

20
-0

17
1

C0
.0

1
BO

EL
K

N
EW

PO
RT

 F
AB

 &
 M

AC
HI

N
E

LE
GE

N
ED

 &
 G

EN
ER

AL
 N

O
TE

S

N
O

V.
 0

5,
 2

02
0

N
EW

PO
RT

 F
AB

 &
 M

AC
HI

N
E

B

N
O

T 
FO

R 
CO

N
ST

RU
CT

IO
N

B
10

-2
9-

20
20

BL
DG

 R
EV

IS
IO

N

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
FO

AutoCAD SHX Text
FO

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRFC

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRFC

AutoCAD SHX Text
CO

AutoCAD SHX Text
MW

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
HB

AutoCAD SHX Text
FDC

AutoCAD SHX Text
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
WF

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
101



THE FOLLOWING SUDAS FIGURES ARE INCLUDED BY REFERENCE:

FIGURE TITLE
3010.101 TRENCH BEDDING AND BACKFILL ZONES
3010.102 RIGID GRAVITY PIPE TRENCH BEDDING
3010.103 FLEXIBLE GRAVITY PIPE TRENCH BEDDING
5010.101 THRUST BLOCKS
6010.602 CASTINGS FOR STORM SEWER MANHOLES
7010.101 JOINTS
7030.101 CONCRETE DRIVEWAY, TYPE A
9030.101 PLANTING PIT
9030.102 TREE STAKING, GUYING, AND WRAPPING
9040.102 FILTER BERM AND FILTER SOCK
9040.119 SILT FENCE
9040.120 STABILIZED CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCE

DESIGN STANDARDS AND REFERENCE DRAWINGSPAVEMENT GENERAL NOTES
1. ALL SLOPES IN PAVEMENT SHALL BE UNIFORM TO AVOID PONDING.

2. ALL DIMENSIONS TO BACK-OF-CURB UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE.

3. REMOVE AND REPLACE OR RESTORE ALL STREET SIGNS, PAVEMENT MARKINGS,
SIDEWALK LAMPS, SIDEWALKS, STEPS, LANDSCAPE STRUCTURES, CURB AND GUTTER,
STREETS, DRIVES AND ALL OTHER SURFACE STRUCTURES REMOVED OR OTHERWISE
DAMAGED DURING THE COURSE OF THE WORK.  SIDEWALKS SHALL BE REMOVED AND
REPLACED TO NEAREST JOINT BEYOND CONSTRUCTION AREA.

4. COMPACT SUBGRADE BENEATH PAVEMENTS IN ACCORDANCE WITH GRADING NOTES.

5. GRANULAR SUBBASE FOR PAVEMENTS SHALL MEET THE LIMITS OF GRADUATION NO. 14
(MODIFIED SUBBASE) PER IOWA DOT STANDARD SPECIFICATION FOR HIGHWAY AND
BRIDGE CONSTRUCTION SECTION 4123.

6. PROOF-ROLL SUBGRADE PER SECTION 2115.  REMOVE AND REPLACE UNSTABLE AREAS
WITH SUITABLE COMPACTED MATERIAL.

7. ALL CURB AND GUTTER IS 6"  STANDARD CURB UNLESS STATED OTHERWISE.

STORM SEWER NOTES
1. RCP STORM SEWER SHALL BE CLASS III REINFORCED CONCRETE PIPE (RCP) TO DEPTH OF

COVER UP TO 12' CONFORMING TO ASTM C76 OR AASHTO M170.

2. RCP STORM SEWER SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED WITH CLASS R-2 BEDDING PER SUDAS
FIGURE 3010.102 (IDOT STANDARD ROAD PLAN SW-102).  STORM SEWERS UNDER AND
WITHIN 5-FT OF PAVING SHALL BE BACKFILLED WITH CLASS 1 AGGREGATE BACKFILL TO
BOTTOM OF SUBGRADE ELEVATION.  ALL OTHER STORM SEWERS SHALL BE BACKFILLED
WITH SUITABLE NATIVE MATERIAL.

3. HIGH DENSITY POLYETHYLENE PIPE (HDPE) SHALL BE CORRUGATED WITH INTEGRALLY
FORMED SMOOTH INTERIOR MEETING THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE STATEWIDE URBAN
DESIGN AND SPECIFICATIONS (SUDAS) SECTION 4020.

4. HDPE STORM SEWER SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED WITH CLASS F-3 BEDDING.  HDPE STORM
SEWER SHALL BE BACKFILLED WITH GRANULAR BACKFILL AGGREGATE TO A MINIMUM
OF 12" ABOVE THE TOP OF THE PIPE.

5. STORM SEWER LINES SHALL BE A MINIMUM OF 10' FROM WATER LINES RUNNING
PARALLEL.  AT CROSSINGS, A MINIMUM 18" SEPARATION MUST BE PROVIDED.

6. ALL LINE AND GRADE CONTROL WILL BE DONE WITH A LASER BEAM, WITH GRADE
CHECKS AT 25', 50' AND THEN EVERY 100' BETWEEN MANHOLES.

7. THE CONTRACTOR WILL BE REQUIRED TO MAINTAIN A RECORD DRAWING SET SHOWING
LOCATIONS OF ALL STORM SEWER CONSTRUCTION.  THE RECORD DRAWING SET WILL BE
PROVIDED TO THE OWNER.

PCC PAVEMENT NOTES
1. PCC PAVING THICKNESS SHALL BE 7-INCH ON 6-INCH GRANULAR SUBBASE, UNLESS

STATED OTHERWISE.

2. MATERIALS AND CONSTRUCTION FOR PORTLAND CEMENT CONCRETE PAVEMENTS SHALL
MEET THE REQUIREMENT OF IOWA DOT STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS FOR HIGHWAY AND
BRIDGE CONSTRUCTION, LATEST REVISION, SECTION 2301.  THE PARAGRAPHS FOR
MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT SHALL NOT APPLY.

3. MINIMUM 28-DAY COMPRESSIVE STRENGTH FOR CONCRETE USED FOR PAVEMENTS
SHALL BE 4000 PSI.  CONCRETE SHALL BE C-3 OR C-4 WITH TYPE 1 CEMENT.  AIR
CONTENT SHALL BE 6-1/2% ± 1.5% COARSE AGGREGATE.  AIR ENTRAINMENT
ADMIXTURES AND WATER REDUCING ADMIXTURES SHALL CONFORM TO IOWA DOT
SPECIFICATIONS FOR HIGHWAY AND BRIDGE CONSTRUCTION SECTION 4103. DURABILITY
FOR PORTLAND CEMENT CONCRETE SHALL BE CLASS 2.  JOINT SEALER SHALL CONFORM
TO IOWA DOT SPECIFICATIONS FOR HIGHWAY AND BRIDGE CONSTRUCTION SECTION
4136 FOR HOT POURED JOINT SEALER.

4. CURING COMPOUND (WHITE, DARK OR CLEAR) SHALL CONFORM TO IOWA DOT
SPECIFICATIONS FOR SECTION 4105.  APPLICATION METHOD AND CURING SHALL
CONFORM TO IOWA DOT SPECIFICATIONS FOR HIGHWAY AND BRIDGE CONSTRUCTION
SECTION 2301.19.

5. FLYASH PER IOWA DOT SPECIFICATIONS FOR HIGHWAY AND BRIDGE CONSTRUCTION
SECTION 4108 MAY BE SUBSTITUTED FOR CEMENT AT THE RATES SPECIFIED IN SECTION
2301.04E AFTER NOTIFICATION AND AUTHORIZATION BY THE OWNER'S
REPRESENTATIVE.

6. PAVEMENT TIE BARS AND DOWEL BARS SHALL CONFORM TO IOWA DOT SPECIFICATIONS
FOR HIGHWAY AND BRIDGE CONSTRUCTION SECTION 4151.  EPOXY COATING, WHEN
SPECIFIED, SHALL CONFORM TO IOWA DOT SPECIFICATIONS FOR HIGHWAY AND BRIDGE
CONSTRUCTION SECTION 4151.03B.

7. CURBS SHALL BE CAST INTEGRAL WITH CONCRETE PAVEMENT UNLESS NOTED
OTHERWISE.

8. PCC SIDEWALKS 5 FEET OR LESS IN WIDTH SHALL BE 4 INCHES THICK.  PCC SIDEWALKS
GREATER THAN 5 FEET WIDE  BUT LESS THAN 12 FEET WIDE SHALL BE 6 INCHES THICK.
SIDEWALK THICKNESS AT ALL DRIVEWAYS SHALL SHALL MATCH THAT OF THE ADJACENT
DRIVEWAY.  TRANSVERSE CONSTRUCTION JOINT SPACING FOR PCC SIDEWALKS 5 FEET OR
LESS IN WIDTH SHALL BE PLACED A MAXIMUM OF 5 FEET ON CENTER.  TRANSVERSE
CONSTRUCTION JOINT SPACING FOR PCC SIDEWALKS GREATER THAN 5 FEET WIDE BUT
LESS THAN 12 FEET WIDE SHALL BE PLACED A MAXIMUM OF 8 FEET ON CENTER.  PLACE
EXPANSION JOINTS WHERE WALK MEETS OTHER WALKS, BACK OF CURBS, FIXTURES, OR
OTHER STRUCTURES, AND AT INTERVALS NOT EXCEEDING 50 FEET.  SIDEWALKS SHALL
HAVE A MAXIMUM CROSS SLOPE OF 2% DRAINING TOWARDS BACK OF CURB, UNLESS
OTHERWISE NOTED.

9. ONE INCH PREFORMED FOAM EXPANSION JOINT MATERIAL SONOFLEX "F" BY
SONOBORN OR APPROVED EQUAL SHALL BE PLACED BETWEEN NEW PAVEMENT
CONSTRUCTION AND THE FACES OF BUILDINGS, STOOPS, EXISTING SLABS, AND OTHER
FIXTURES, UNLESS NOTED ON THE DRAWINGS.  JOINTS AT THESE LOCATIONS SHALL BE
SEALED WITH A SELF-LEVELING POLYURETHANE SUCH AS SONOLASTIC SL-1 OR
APPROVED EQUAL.

10. CONSTRUCT 1" EXPANSION JOINTS ON PCC CURB AT ALL ENDS OF RETURN RADII.

SH
EE

T 
N

U
M

BE
R:

SH
EE

T 
N

AM
E:

DR
AW

IN
G 

LO
G

EN
GI

N
EE

R:

RE
V

DA
TE

DE
SC

RI
PT

IO
N

 O
F 

CH
AN

GE
S

PR
O

JE
CT

 N
AM

E:

CL
IE

N
T 

N
AM

E:

IS
SU

ED
 F

O
R:

PR
O

JE
CT

 N
0.

:
DA

TE
 IS

SU
ED

:
PR

O
JE

CT
 M

AN
AG

ER
:

CU
RR

EN
T 

RE
V:

W
W

W
.A

XI
O

M
-C

O
N

.C
O

M
 |

 (3
19

) 5
19

-6
22

0

 Nov 05, 2020 - 10:42am S:\PROJECTS\2020\200171\05 Design\Civil-Survey\Sheets\200171 - C0.00.dwg

20
-0

17
1

C0
.0

2
BO

EL
K

N
EW

PO
RT

 F
AB

 &
 M

AC
HI

N
E

GE
N

ER
AL

 N
O

TE
S

N
O

V.
 0

5,
 2

02
0

N
EW

PO
RT

 F
AB

 &
 M

AC
HI

N
E

B

N
O

T 
FO

R 
CO

N
ST

RU
CT

IO
N

B
10

-2
9-

20
20

BL
DG

 R
EV

IS
IO

N



S0
1°

 3
2'

 2
1"

E 
   

 3
22

.7
1'

S89° 08' 27"W     544.00'

N
01

° 3
2'

 2
1"

W
   

  3
22

.4
6'

N89° 06' 55"E     544.00'

0 15 30

SH
EE

T 
N

U
M

BE
R:

SH
EE

T 
N

AM
E:

DR
AW

IN
G 

LO
G

EN
GI

N
EE

R:

RE
V

DA
TE

DE
SC

RI
PT

IO
N

 O
F 

CH
AN

GE
S

PR
O

JE
CT

 N
AM

E:

CL
IE

N
T 

N
AM

E:

IS
SU

ED
 F

O
R:

PR
O

JE
CT

 N
O

.:
DA

TE
 IS

SU
ED

:
PR

O
JE

CT
 M

AN
AG

ER
:

CU
RR

EN
T 

RE
V:

W
W

W
.A

XI
O

M
-C

O
N

.C
O

M
 |

 (3
19

) 5
19

-6
22

0

 Nov 05, 2020 - 10:42am S:\PROJECTS\2020\200171\05 Design\Civil-Survey\Base\200171-base.dwg

20
-0

17
1

C1
.0

0
BO

EL
K

N
EW

PO
RT

 F
AB

 &
 M

AC
HI

N
E

EX
IS

TI
N

G 
CO

N
DI

TI
O

N
S 

&
TO

PO
GR

AP
HI

CA
L 

PL
AN

N
O

V.
 0

5,
 2

02
0

N
EW

PO
RT

 F
AB

 &
 M

AC
HI

N
E

B

N
O

T 
FO

R 
CO

N
ST

RU
CT

IO
N

FAWCETT DRIVE

RUMMEL
LS

COMMER
CIAL

SUBDIVISION

PROCTO
R AND GAMBLE

SEC
OND ADDITI

ON

RUMMEL
LS

COMMER
CIAL

SUBDIVISION LO
TS

 1&
 2

B
10

-2
9-

20
20

BL
DG

 R
EV

IS
IO

N

10' PUBLIC
UTILITY

EASEMENT

10' PUBLIC
UTILITY

EASEMENT

40' UTILITY EASEMENT
IOWA LAND RECORDS

BK 325 PG 148

20' GAS LINE
EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" HDPE INV FES W 735.30 INV FES E 733.17

AutoCAD SHX Text
30" RCP INV FES E 732.47

AutoCAD SHX Text
15" HDPE INV 741.53

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING SANITARY MANHOLE D08-04 RIM 736.47 INV 12" PVC N 732.42 INV 12" CLAY E 732.42

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING SANITARY MANHOLE D08-03 RIM 740.19 INV 8" PVC S INV 12" CLAY W 731.76 INV 12" PVC E 731.69

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING STORM MANHOLE RIM 736.09 INV 28" RCP S 731.46



S0
1°

 3
2'

 2
1"

E 
   

 3
22

.7
1'

S89° 08' 27"W     544.00'

N
01

° 3
2'

 2
1"

W
   

  3
22

.4
6'

N89° 06' 55"E     544.00'

SS

W
W

CO

ST
ST

ST

68.51'
74

0

74
5

74
5

74
5

74
5 74

5

75
0

73
9

74
1

74
2

74
3

74
4

74
674

774
874

9
75

1

741

740741

740739

740

741

74
1

74
0

753

753

737

738

740

740
741

741
740

739

0 15 30

SH
EE

T 
N

U
M

BE
R:

SH
EE

T 
N

AM
E:

DR
AW

IN
G 

LO
G

EN
GI

N
EE

R:

RE
V

DA
TE

DE
SC

RI
PT

IO
N

 O
F 

CH
AN

GE
S

PR
O

JE
CT

 N
AM

E:

CL
IE

N
T 

N
AM

E:

IS
SU

ED
 F

O
R:

PR
O

JE
CT

 N
O

.:
DA

TE
 IS

SU
ED

:
PR

O
JE

CT
 M

AN
AG

ER
:

CU
RR

EN
T 

RE
V:

W
W

W
.A

XI
O

M
-C

O
N

.C
O

M
 |

 (3
19

) 5
19

-6
22

0

 Nov 05, 2020 - 10:43am S:\PROJECTS\2020\200171\05 Design\Civil-Survey\Sheets\200171 - C2.00.dwg

20
-0

17
1

C2
.0

0
BO

EL
K

N
EW

PO
RT

 F
AB

 &
 M

AC
HI

N
E

SI
TE

 &
 U

TI
LI

TY
 P

LA
N

N
O

V.
 0

5,
 2

02
0

N
EW

PO
RT

 F
AB

 &
 M

AC
HI

N
E

B

N
O

T 
FO

R 
CO

N
ST

RU
CT

IO
N

A

SITE PLAN KEY NOTES:

DETENTION POND OUTFALL.CONTRACTOR PROVIDE EROSION
CONTROL STONE.

PROPOSED ADA PARKING SIGN

PROPOSED 4" CONCRETE SIDEWALK. SEE DETAIL 1/C2.00

PROPOSED STANDARD DUTY PAVEMENT. SEE DETAIL 2/C2.00

PROPOSED 53 LF OF WATER SERVICE. PROVIDE CLEANOUT
BETWEEN SERVICE CONNECTION AND BUILDING. MINIMUM 5.5'
BURY.

PROPOSED 44 LF (BUILDING TO PROPOSED WYE CONNECTION)
OF 6" PVC SANITARY SEWER SERVICE @ MIN. 2.00%. MINIMUM
ELEVATION AT BUILDING 742.00'

PROPOSED LIGHT POLE

PROPOSED GRAVEL PARKING AREA. 6" OF RECYCLED CRUSHED
ASPHALT ON TOP OF 4" OF 2" ROAD STONE.

PROPOSED LANDSCAPE AREA

PROPOSED EVERGREEN TREES PLANTED ALONG DETENTION
POND BERM. (TYP.)

PROTECT EXISTING MANHOLE DURING CONSTRUCTION
OPERATIONS.

PROPOSED DUMPSTER ENCLOSURE .

B

C

D

E

F

LEGEND:
UTILITIES

COMMUNICATIONS

OVERHEAD LINE

ELECTRIC

FIBER OPTIC

GAS

SANITARY SEWER

STORM

WATER: DOMESTIC

SUBDRAIN

EXISTING PROPOSED

COMM. HANDHOLE

COMM. PEDESTAL

GUY WIRE ANCHOR

UTILITY POLE

UTILITY POLE WITH LIGHT

ELECTRIC TRANSFORMER

LIGHT POLE

FIBER OPTIC HANDHOLE

GAS VALVE

STORM MANHOLE

STORM INTAKE

HYDRANT

SANITARY MANHOLE

SANITARY CLEANOUT

WATER VALVE

CURB STOP

SITE

FENCE: BARB WIRE

FENCE: CHAIN LINK

FENCE: CONSTRUCTION

FENCE: WIRE

FENCE: WOOD

CONTOUR - INTERMEDIATE

CONTOUR - INDEX

WELL

TREE: DECIDUOUS

TREE: CONIFEROUS

SIGN

SHRUBBERY

STREAM CENTERLINE

FENCE: VINYL

FO

E

C

C

CO

W

SEE LANDSCAPE PLAN

100

CO

OH

E

FO

G

SS

ST
SD

W

EXISTING PROPOSED

100

SEE LANDSCAPE PLAN

SEE LANDSCAPE PLAN

FAWCETT DRIVE

RUMMEL
LS

COMMER
CIAL

SUBDIVISION

RUMMEL
LS

COMMER
CIAL

SUBDIVISION LO
TS

 1&
 2

B

E

D

D

C

PROPOSED
9,900 SF

SHOP & OFFICE
FFE: 746.00'

F

3

4

7"

6"

12"

PORTLAND CEMENT CONCRETE

MODIFIED SUBBASE PER IDOT 4123

PROPERLY PREPARED SUBGRADE (SEE GRADING NOTES)

STANDARD DUTY PAVEMENT SECTION
NOT TO SCALE 1 TYPICAL SIDEWALK

NOT TO SCALE 2

SEE PLAN FOR
GRADES

4"

PER PLAN

4"

PORTLAND CEMENT CONCRETE

MODIFIED SUBBASE PER IDOT 4123

PROPERLY PREPARED SUBGRADE
(SEE GRADING NOTES)

G

H

H

G

50'

61.46'

50'

198'

24'

6'

63'

25' FRONT
BUILDING SETBACK

24'

84.03'

10'

18'

30'

10' 18'

I

I

J

J

J

J

K

K
A

B
10

-2
9-

20
20

BL
DG

 R
EV

IS
IO

N

10' PUBLIC
UTILITY

EASEMENT

10' PUBLIC
UTILITY

EASEMENT

40' UTILITY EASEMENT
IOWA LAND RECORDS

BK 325 PG 148

L

L

91'

R35'

R30' R30'

R17.5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" HDPE INV FES W 735.30 INV FES E 733.17

AutoCAD SHX Text
30" RCP INV FES E 732.47

AutoCAD SHX Text
15" HDPE INV 741.53

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING SANITARY MANHOLE D08-04 RIM 736.47 INV 12" PVC N 732.42 INV 12" CLAY E 732.42

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING SANITARY MANHOLE D08-03 RIM 740.19 INV 8" PVC S INV 12" CLAY W 731.76 INV 12" PVC E 731.69

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING STORM MANHOLE RIM 736.09 INV 28" RCP S 731.46

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
FO

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
CO

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
101

AutoCAD SHX Text
(CO)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(OH)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(FO)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(G)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(S)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(ST)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(SD)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(W)

AutoCAD SHX Text
+

AutoCAD SHX Text
+

AutoCAD SHX Text
+

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
+

AutoCAD SHX Text
+

AutoCAD SHX Text
+

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
#

AutoCAD SHX Text
//

AutoCAD SHX Text
//

AutoCAD SHX Text
//

AutoCAD SHX Text
#

AutoCAD SHX Text
#

AutoCAD SHX Text
#

AutoCAD SHX Text
//

AutoCAD SHX Text
//

AutoCAD SHX Text
//

AutoCAD SHX Text
#

AutoCAD SHX Text
#



S0
1°

 3
2'

 2
1"

E 
   

 3
22

.7
1'

S89° 08' 27"W     544.00'

N
01

° 3
2'

 2
1"

W
   

  3
22

.4
6'

N89° 06' 55"E     544.00'

SS

W
W

CO

ST
ST

ST

68.51'

R 101.0

R 201.0R 200.0

R 100.0

PR
 1

01
.0

74
0

740

74
0

740

745

74
5 74
5

750

73
8

73
8

73
9

739

73
9

739

741

74
1

741

741

74
1

74
2 74

2

742

74
3

743

74
4

744

74
6

74
6

74
6 74

7 74
8 74

9

751

75
1

740

742

739

741

750

751

753

744.33 PG

742.98 PG
743.25 PG

743.70 PG

743.97 PG

745.91 TW

745.71 TW 745.81 TW

746.00 TW

744.84 TP742.65 TP

744.46 TP 744.77 TP
745.50 TP

745.31 TP
745.37 TP

745.12 TP

744.59 TP

744.73 TP

745.09 TP

745.21 TP
745.04 TP

745.00 TP

745.64 TP

PR 201.0

0 15 30

SH
EE

T 
N

U
M

BE
R:

SH
EE

T 
N

AM
E:

DR
AW

IN
G 

LO
G

EN
GI

N
EE

R:

RE
V

DA
TE

DE
SC

RI
PT

IO
N

 O
F 

CH
AN

GE
S

PR
O

JE
CT

 N
AM

E:

CL
IE

N
T 

N
AM

E:

IS
SU

ED
 F

O
R:

PR
O

JE
CT

 N
O

.:
DA

TE
 IS

SU
ED

:
PR

O
JE

CT
 M

AN
AG

ER
:

CU
RR

EN
T 

RE
V:

W
W

W
.A

XI
O

M
-C

O
N

.C
O

M
 |

 (3
19

) 5
19

-6
22

0

 Nov 05, 2020 - 10:43am S:\PROJECTS\2020\200171\05 Design\Civil-Survey\Sheets\200171 - C3.00.dwg

20
-0

17
1

C3
.0

0
BO

EL
K

N
EW

PO
RT

 F
AB

 &
 M

AC
HI

N
E

DE
TE

N
TI

O
N

 P
O

N
D 

&
ER

RO
SI

O
N

 C
O

N
TR

O
L 

PL
AN

N
O

V.
 0

5,
 2

02
0

N
EW

PO
RT

 F
AB

 &
 M

AC
HI

N
E

B

N
O

T 
FO

R 
CO

N
ST

RU
CT

IO
N

R 101.0 - DETENTION POND OUTLET STRUCTURE DETAIL
NOT TO SCALE 1

SW-512

STORM STRUCTURE R-101.0
SW-512 PER C3.00

OVERFLOW ELEV.=740.00

FL=737.00

POND BOTTOM
738.00

100 YR FLOWLINE=740.23
OVERFLOW=741.00

71 LF OF 12"
PERF. HDPE @ 1%

SITE GRADING NOTES:
1. THE APPROPRIATE EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL MEASURES SHALL BE IN PLACE PRIOR TO COMMENCING

GRADING OPERATIONS.

2. CONTRACTOR SHALL COMPLY WITH SUDAS SECTION 2010 FOR GRADING & EARTHWORK OPERATIONS

3. GENERAL COMPACTION REQUIREMENTS ARE INDICATED BELOW AND RELATIVE COMPACTION IS BASED UPON THE

MATERIALS STANDARD PROCTOR DRY DENSITY (ASTM D698).  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE MATERIAL

SAMPLES TO THE TESTING AGENCY AS REQUIRED TO ESTABLISH THE MATERIAL PROPERTIES.

RELATIVE MOISTURE VARIANCE

LOCATION OF FILL MATERIALS  COMPACTION FROM OPTIMUM

LESS THAN 12" BELOW FOUNDATIONS, 98% -3% to +3% SANDS

FLOOR SLABS -1% to +3% CLAYEY SOILS

MORE THAN 12" BELOW FOUNDATIONS, 95% -3% to +3% SANDS

FLOOR SLABS 95% -1% to +3% CLAYEY SOILS

BELOW EXTERIOR PAVEMENTS 95% -3% to +3% SANDS

95% -1% to +3% CLAYEY SOILS

BELOW LANDSCAPED SURFACES 90% -5% to + 5% ALL SOILS

EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL NOTES:
1. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR PROVIDING AND MAINTAINING THE APPROPRIATE BEST

MANAGEMENT PRACTICES (BMP) IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE PROJECT STORM WATER POLLUTION

PREVENTION PLAN (SWPPP).

2. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE TO INSPECT THE BEST MANAGEMENT PRACTICES A MINIMUM

OF ONCE PER WEEK.  INSPECTIONS, AND ANY REQUIRED CORRECTIVE ACTION, SHALL BE DOCUMENTED.

3. SEDIMENT BARRIERS SUCH AS SILT FENCE AND SEDIMENT SOCKS SHALL BE CLEANED WHEN THE DEPTH

OF ACCUMULATED SEDIMENT DEPTH MEETS OR EXCEEDS  FIFTY PERCENT OF THE HEIGHT OF THE

BARRIER.

4. TEMPORARY SEED OR OTHER APPROPRIATE MEASURE SHALL BE APPLIED TO DISTURBED AREAS THAT

REMAIN INACTIVE FOR MORE THAN FOURTEEN DAYS.

5. THE GENERAL SEQUENCE OF EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL EVENTS IS:

A. INSTALL PERIMETER MEASURES AND INLET PROTECTION DEVICES

B. CONSTRUCT CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCE / TRACKING PAD

C. PERFORM SITE GRADING OPERATIONS

D. STABILIZE AREAS TO BE PAVED WITH GRANULAR SUBBASE \

E. STABILIZE AREAS OUTSIDE OF BUILDING FOOTPRINT AND PAVEMENT AT EARLIEST OPPORTUNITY.

IF WORK WILL CONTINUE IN AN AREA AT A LATER DATE, PROVIDE TEMPORARY STABILIZATION IN

THE FORM OF TEMPORARY SEEDING OR OTHER SURFACE TREATMENT.

F. PLACE TOPSOIL AND ESTABLISH PERMANENT VEGETATION

G. REMOVE ALL TEMPORARY MEASURES UPON FINAL STABILIZATION.

6. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR THE REMOVAL AND PROPER DISPOSAL OF ALL BMPs.  THE

COST SHALL BE INCIDENTAL TO INSTALLING AND MAINTAINING THE BMPs.

NOTES

1. TW = TOP OF WALK
2. TP = TOP OF PROPOSED PAVEMENT

FAWCETT DRIVE

SITE GRADING KEY NOTES:
CONTRACTOR TO MAINTAIN POSITIVE DRAINAGE AWAY FROM BUILDING AND ALONG PROPOSED DRAINAGE

PATHWAY.

PROPOSED ADA ACCESS ROUTE, MAXIMUM SLOPE IN ANY DIRECTION IS 2.00%.

A

PROPOSED
9,900 SF

SHOP & OFFICE
FFE: 746.00'

A

A

A

A

B

B

4" ORIFICE @ 738.00'
PROVIDE EROSION CONTROL STONE TO

PREVENT SEDIMENT BUILD-UP AT OPENING

PROPOSED DETENTION AREA
TOP OF BERM 741.00'
100-YEAR WS 740.23'

LEGEND:

SILT FENCE OR SILT SOCK

SWPPP PLAN KEY NOTES:

INSTALL STABILIZED CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCE

PROVIDE SANITATION FACILITY (PORTABLE RESTROOM)

PROVIDE CONCRETE WASHOUT

PROVIDE ENCLOSURE FOR STORAGE OF DOCUMENTS (PERMITS, SWPPP,
INSPECTION FORMS, ETC.)

PROVIDE INLET PROTECTION PRIOR TO GRADING ACTIVITIES. MAINTAIN
THROUGHOUT CONSTRUCTION.  REMOVE UPON FINAL STABILIZATION.

INSTALL PERIMETER MEASURES PRIOR TO STARTING CONSTRUCTION.

CONSTRUCTION LIMITS

PROVIDE EROSION CONTROL STONE AT END OF FLARED END SECTION.

CONTRACTOR TO MAINTAIN EXISTING STORMWATER OVERFLOW PATHWAY.

1

3

5

2

4

6

7

8

9

2

3

1

4

7

7

7

7

7

5

5

5

5

5

8

6

6

6

6

6

B
10

-2
9-

20
20

BL
DG

 R
EV

IS
IO

N

FES

FES

FES

10' PUBLIC
UTILITY

EASEMENT

10' PUBLIC
UTILITY

EASEMENT

40' UTILITY EASEMENT
IOWA LAND RECORDS

BK 325 PG 148

20' GAS LINE
EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" HDPE INV FES W 735.30 INV FES E 733.17

AutoCAD SHX Text
30" RCP INV FES E 732.47

AutoCAD SHX Text
15" HDPE INV 741.53

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING SANITARY MANHOLE D08-04 RIM 736.47 INV 12" PVC N 732.42 INV 12" CLAY E 732.42

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING SANITARY MANHOLE D08-03 RIM 740.19 INV 8" PVC S INV 12" CLAY W 731.76 INV 12" PVC E 731.69

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING STORM MANHOLE RIM 736.09 INV 28" RCP S 731.46



N89° 06' 55"E     544.00'

SS

W

CO

ST

SHEET NUMBER:

SHEET TITLE:

PROJECT NAME:

PROJECT N0.:

DATE ISSUED:

CURRENT REV:

WWW.AXIOM-CON.COM | (319) 519-6220

PROJECT MANAGER:

65' TRUCK MOVEMENTS

NEWPORT FAB AND MACHINE, FAWCETT DRIVE

0 20 40BOELK 200171

A

11/05/2020

1

AutoCAD SHX Text
15" HDPE INV 741.53



 

 

RESOLUTION 1952 

 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE SITE PLAN OF NEWPORT FABRICATING, LLC. 

LOCATED AT 145 FAWCETT DRIVE. 

 

 WHEREAS, the Newport Fabricating, LLC, a/k/a Newport Fab & Machine is purchasing 

Lot B of Lot 4 of Rummells Commercial Subdivision, West Branch, Iowa (the “Property”), from 

the City of West Branch; and 

 

 WHEREAS, Newport Fab & Machine submitted a proposed Site Plan for the Property; 

and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission has reviewed said Site Plan and 

recommended approval of the same; and 

 

 WHEREAS, said Site Plan complies with the requirements of Chapter 173 of the Code of 

Ordinances of the City of West Branch. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of West 

Branch, Cedar County, Iowa, that the site plan of Newport Fab & Machine at 145 Fawcett Drive is 

hereby approved. 

 

Passed and approved this 16th day of November, 2020. 

 

 

 

      ______________________________ 

      Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_____________________________________ 

Redmond Jones II, City Administrator/Clerk 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

  
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  November 16, 2020 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Resolution 1953 – A Resolution Hiring Logan Cilek for the Full-Time 

“Streets Maintenance Worker I” Position with the Department of Public 

Works. 

CITY GOAL: Establish a sound and sustainable government supported by professionalism, 

progressive thinking and modernizing the organization. 

PREPARED BY: Matt Goodale, Public Works Director 

DATE:  November 12, 2020  
     
BACKGROUND:  

 

City Council approved adding an additional employee to Public Works for the 20/21 budget. The 

job was officially posted in July and listed four weeks. August 26th five applicants were interviewed 

by City Administrator Redmond Jones II, Finance Director Gordon Edgar, Public Works Director 

Matt Goodale, Lead Water Operator Tim Moss, Safety and Facilities Coordinator Paul O’Neil and 

Wastewater Operator Nevin Tucker. We hired our top pick but due to the quality of the remaining 

applicants, requested to keep the other applications on file for use in this hire. Of the applicants 

Logan Cilek was chosen to fill the position of Streets Maintenance Worker I. Logan has varied 

experience with construction and maintenance. He is a valued member of the Fire Department and 

we believe he will be an excellent addition to the Public Works Department. This position will spend 

the majority of their time on streets related projects such as potholing, concrete patching, sign 

maintenance, tree maintenance, storm sewer maintenance as well as being involved in all projects 

and other maintenance needs of the department. Logan will be hired as a full time employee at a rate 

of $19.50/hr beginning on December 21, 2020. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approve Resolution 1953 – Move to Action 
 
REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Non Consent Item 6 



 

 

Street Maintenance Worker I Job Description 

CITY OF WEST BRANCH  

Position: Streets Maintenance Worker I  

Reports to: Public Works Director 

FLSA: Non-exempt  

Job Summary: Maintain streets and curbs in good repair and safe condition, test and monitor all 

water and wastewater systems for quality and proper operation, maintain City-owned property as 

required, maintain all City-owned buildings and equipment in mechanically and structurally sound 

condition. 

Major Responsibilities:  

Municipal Street System –  
1. Coordinate all maintenance activities on City streets, sidewalks and curbs such as grading, 

construction, repair or reconstruction. 

2. Clean and repair storm sewers and catch basins. 

3. Cut and spray weeds along City roadways. 

4. Remove snow, ice and debris from streets and sidewalks as needed. 

5. Operate the street sweeper. 

6. Install and maintain signs. 

7. Apply for or assist in applying for grants related to signage. 

8. Apply for or assist in applying for grants related to tree replacements. 

9. Maintain the City owned trees including planting, watering, fertilizing, trimming, removals or 

working with contractors on any of the aforementioned requirements. 

10. Maintain the yard waste collection area. 

11. Mow shoulders. 

12. Inspect storm water intakes, piping, culverts and other associated infrastructure. 

13. Make recommendations of repairs or replacements to the Public Works Director. 

14. Paint road markings. 

15. Finish concrete work.  

16. Potholing. 

Municipal Buildings – perform minor maintenance on all City buildings as required and maintain 

grounds.  

Municipal Equipment – general services, maintenance, minor repair, and operating of equipment 

where skill is needed; i.e. industrial tractor, pumps, etc.  
1. Safely operate applicable City equipment on appropriate applications as needed, following all 

OSHA regulations and safety committee directives. 

2. Become familiar with all operating manuals for all City equipment and follow all of the listed 

proper operating procedures to preserve the life of the equipment.  

Miscellaneous:  
1. Perform minor maintenance on all city-related buildings as required.  

2. Dispose of dead animals and other disposable items as needed. 

3. Ensure compliance with OSHA and other safety regulations including postings, equipment and 

procedures.  

4. Wear safety equipment as necessary.  



 

 

5. Participates as necessary in maintenance of streets, water, sewer collection system and water 

distribution system.  

6. Wear a City supplied cellular telephone with you at all times, unless you have been informed and 

approved of your unavailability in advance. A response time of thirty (30) minutes is required in 

the event of a City emergency requiring maintenance personnel.  

7. Arrange for locates of underground utilities prior to excavating projects and locate utilities as 

requested by Iowa One Call.  

8. Assist with putting up and maintain City decorations at appropriate times.  

Discretionary Tasks: These tasks are not part of the normal daily requirements of this position but 

can be assigned to the position as the need arises as determined by the Public Works Director. 

Municipal Sewer System –  
1. Follows all directives from the USEPA and IDNR per the NPDES Permit 

2. Monitors motors, blowers, pumps, filters, chemical feeders and other equipment associated with 

the sewer treatment system.  

3. Repairs leaks, malfunctions and other plant related issues in a timely fashion. 

4. Read total system flow meter to determine daily flow in gallons or cubic feet; report results to 

proper authorities.  

5. Test water for all required parameters per the NPDES Permit. 

6. Locate sewer mains for repair and/or replacement as needed. 

7. Inspect manholes yearly per maintenance schedule. Clean any manhole or line that has obvious 

blockages that could lead to service issues. 

8. Attend training sessions to acquire and/or maintain Iowa Department of Natural Resources water 

and wastewater certifications.  

Municipal Water System –  
1. Read private water meters as necessary, hang notices and shut-off notices, shut off water to 

properties as necessary; repair and/or replace water meters as required.  

2. Install meters, wiring and radio read equipment on new construction working with the contractors 

to assure the appropriate timing  

3. Clean valve boxes yearly prior to hydrant flushing to ensure access and operation. 

4. Flush all fire hydrants on a yearly basis (or as operationally feasible) and repair or replace as 

needed. 

5. Maintain all fire hydrants including inventory, marking, scheduled maintenance plan, flow testing, 

oiling/greasing, painting and other maintenance as necessary to provide an optimal service life of 

all fire hydrants. 

6. Maintain access to all fire hydrants including removal of snow accumulations, grass, weeds or 

other impediments to direct access. 

7. Maintain adequate marking of all hydrants. 

Municipal Park System – Repair and maintain the facilities and equipment; cut grass, regularly 

clean restrooms and spray for weeds when needed.  

Yard Waste – Weekly yard waste collection and annual leaf pick up.  

On Call/After Hour Duties- Taking scheduled on call and handling emergency calls after normal 

business hours is a requirement of this position.  



 

 

Overtime- Overtime is utilized for emergencies, after hour’s calls, water reconnects, snow 

removal and on occasion other projects that require work outside of normal business hours. 

Overtime is utilized at the discretion of the Public Works Director and you may be directed to 

work up to a sixteen (16) hour shift if conditions arise that would require it as determined by the 

Public Works Director. 

Such other duties and responsibilities as shall be determined and directed by the Public 

Works Director.  

CONTACTS: Contacts with residents are significant and regular and usually involve exchange 

and conveyance of information. Contacts are made with persons outside the City and with vendors 

and/or contractors and involve the exchange and interpretation of information regarding City 

projects or supplies/equipment purchases.  

EQUIPMENT USED: Truck and attachments, tractor, mower, electrical welding equipment, 

combustible gas meter, pumps, drill press, saws, grinder, ladder, generator, chains, extension 

cords, measuring equipment, jackhammer, sledgehammer, pick-axe, winch, hoses, oils, concrete 

and asphalt tools, hydraulic tools, traffic control equipment, hand-held computer used for reading 

meters and generating reports, general purpose maintenance equipment, general purpose hand 

tools, propane torch, safety equipment, protective clothing, pH meter, ion-sensitive electrodes, 

water distillation equipment, titration equipment, flow finder, register testing equipment, vacuum 

filtration equipment, glassware, hazardous chemicals and materials, level, metal detecting device, 

thermometer, calculator, telephone, mobile radio, computer, photocopier, fax machine, dictionary, 

MSDS documentation, federal register, standard operating procedures, DNR rules, Code of Iowa, 

City of West Branch Code of Ordinances, Uniform Traffic Code, Uniform Building Code, Fire and 

Plumbing Codes.  

COMPETENCIES: The individual shall have a background and/or experience in general and 

skilled maintenance procedures including city utility operations. The individual must be able to 

meet and interact with the public in a congenial business-like manner while working within the 

framework of the City policies. The individual must be capable of working safely and efficiently 

with time and materials. The individual shall perform work in a good and workmanlike manner, 

shall comply with all applicable ordinances of the City and call to the attention of the Public 

Works Director, any violations thereof brought to the individual’s attention in the performance of 

duties, shall comply with all orders and directions of the Public Works Director and shall maintain 

harmonious working relationships with the Mayor, City Council and all other City employees. 

 This individual shall have:  
1. Education – High school diploma.  

2. Licenses and Certifications – Must have or obtain within eighteen (18) months of hire Grade I 

Water Treatment, Water Distribution, and Wastewater Certifications from the Iowa Department 

of Natural Resources and maintain CEU requirements and must have or obtain within sixty (60) 

months of hire Grade II certifications in Water Treatment, Water Distribution and Wastewater.  

3. Pesticide certification or the ability to acquire certification within 12 months of hire.  

4. A valid driver’s license, good driving record, and ability to acquire a CDL license within twelve (12) 

months. Must participate in and be able to pass a drug and alcohol screening program as part of 

the CDL requirements. 

5. Insurability. 

6. Knowledge of proper safety procedures related to equipment, grounds and building maintenance. 



 

 

7. Physical Requirements – Generally medium work requiring the exertion of up to fifty (50) pounds 

of force occasionally, up to twenty-five (25) pounds of force often, and up to ten (10) pounds of 

force constantly to move objects.  

8. Required Physical Activities: Climbing, Balancing, Stooping, Kneeling, Crouching, Crawling, 

Reaching, Standing, Walking, Pushing, Pulling, Lifting, Grasping, Talking, Hearing.  

9. Mental Requirements – Must have the ability to prioritize, plan and schedule a variety of related 

activities; must be capable of performing under moderately to highly stressful conditions created 

by the need to provide accurate solutions to problems and meet citizen’s expectations under time 

deadlines; must understand and follow all employee conduct policies; must be able to understand 

and property follow directions. 

10. This individual shall be able to work under direction but also be capable of undertaking tasks with 

minimal supervision.  

11. This individual shall have the ability to work in all weather conditions.  

12. This individual shall pass a physical examination with drug testing required.  

13. This individual shall be considered a probationary employee for a period of 6 months.  

ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITIONS: The work is performed under all conditions which may 

include exposure to awkward or confining work space, extreme heat and cold, darkness, poor 

lighting, dirt/dust, fumes/odors, wetness/humidity, isolation, moving machinery, noise, vibrations, 

visual strain, unprotected height, working on uneven ground, mechanical hazards, electrical 

hazards, traffic hazards, fire hazards, and bodily discomfort. The work may expose the employee 

to significant work pace pressure, and irregular work hours. 

TERMS OF EMPLOYMENT: The individual shall serve at the pleasure of the City Council. 

The individual shall be on-call twenty four (24) hours a day – as needed. On occasion employment 

conditions are such that this individual may have to work more than forty (40) hours a week or 

more than eight (8) hours a day. Hours and days of work shall be as determined by the Public 

Works Director.  

This job description is not intended to limit the responsibilities of an employee assigned to this 

position to those duties listed above. The employee is expected to follow any other reasonable 

instructions and perform any other reasonable duties requested by city management. The level of 

involvement may vary based on need and individual capabilities.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 







RESOLUTION 1953 
 

A RESOLUTION HIRING LOGAN CILEK FOR THE FULL-TIME “STREETS 

MAINTENANCE WORKER I” POSITION WITH THE DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC 

WORKS. 

 

WHEREAS, the City of West Branch is interested in hiring Logan Cilek as a full-time Streets 

Maintenance Worker I; and 
 
WHEREAS, Logan Cilek was interviewed by a selection committee which included the City 

Administrator, Public Works Director and a number of other key city staff members; and 
 
WHEREAS, Logan Cilek was selected by the aforementioned selection committee to be 

recommended to the City Council to approve the hiring of Logan Cilek for the full-time “Streets 

Maintenance Worker I” position with the Department of Public Works; and 
 
NOW, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of West Branch, Iowa: 
 
Section 1.  That the City of West Brach, Iowa will hire Logan Cilek as a full-time Streets 

Maintenance Worker I, with a start date on December 21, 2020. 
 
Section 2 The following person and position named shall be paid the hourly wage indicated 

and the City Clerk is authorized to issue payroll checks, less legally required or authorized 

deductions for the amounts set out below, and make such contributions to IPERS and Social 

Security or other purposes as required by law or authorization of the Council: 
 
Position Name Wage Per Hour Basic Hours 

Maintenance Worker I Logan Cilek $19.50 40 / Week 

 

Section 3 The above named employee is subject to the City of West Branch Personnel 

Policies and Procedures applicable to their department. 
 
Section 4 This resolution will be effective upon final passage of the City Council. 

 

*      *     *      * 
 

Passed and approved this 16th day of November 2020. 
 
 

                

     ____________________________________ 

      Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

____________________________________ 

Redmond Jones II, City Administrator/Clerk  

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 
 

  
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  November 16, 2020 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Resolution 1954 – Consider Approving the Request of Acciona Windpower 

North America, LLC to Rebate a Portion of Tax Increment Revenues. 

CITY GOAL: Establish a sound and sustainable government supported by professionalism, 

progressive thinking and modernizing the organization. 

PREPARED BY: Redmond Jones II, City Administrator 

DATE:  November 12, 2020  
     
BACKGROUND:  

 

The City entered into an agreement with Acciona, a manufacturer and installer of wind generation 

system, where Acciona expanded its business in West Branch in exchange for tax rebates.  After 

paying rebates for several years there was a dispute over job statistics (a term of the agreement).  

The City ultimately cancelled the agreement. And a lawsuit ensued.  The district court concluded 

the City was in breached of the contract and awarded Acciona compensatory damages for fiscal 

years 2013 and 2014.  However, desiring not to place the City in an economic down turn thus 

harming tax payers and citizens the courts gave the city the ability to forgo or deny such payments 

until such time said tax abatements are affordable for the city. 

 

The resolution considers such tax abated rebate; however, with debt service capacity well over 60% 

for additional financing, and inconsideration of other municipal budget issues.  It is Staff’s 

recommendation to deny this year’s annual consideration. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Deny the Resolution 1954 – Move to Action 
 
REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        
 

 

Non Consent Item 7 



 

 

RESOLUTION 1954 

 

 

RESOLUTION CONSIDERING THE ISSUE OF WHETHER ACCIONA WINDPOWER 

NORTH AMERICA, LLC SHOULD BE REBATED A PORTION OF TAX INCREMENT 

REVENUES 

 
 WHEREAS, on January 2, 2008, the City and Acciona Windpower North America, LLC entered 

into an Agreement titled Amended Tax Increment Development Agreement By and Between the City of West 

Branch, Iowa and Acciona Windpower North America, L.L.C.; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Agreement contemplates performance of certain actions that may or must be 

performed by the parties to the Agreement; and 

  

 WHEREAS, pursuant to the Agreement, one action that may be performed under the Agreement is 

the payment, by the City, of “rebate” payments of “that percentage of incremental taxes actually paid with 

respect to” certain improvements to be made by Acciona “and received under Iowa Code Chapter (sic) 403.19 

by the City;” and 

 

 WHEREAS, each of the possible rebate payments contemplated “shall be subject to annual 

appropriation of the City Council;” and 

  

 WHEREAS, “[p]rior to December 1st of each year during the term” of the Agreement “the City 

Council shall consider the issue of obligating for appropriation to the funding of the payments due in the 

following fiscal year, an amount of tax increment revenues to be collected in the following fiscal year;” and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council is preparing to submit its annual certification “under Iowa Code 

section 403.19 to the Cedar County Auditor . . . the amount of taxes to be paid over the City and the amount,” 

if any, “obligated for appropriation for rebate to Acciona.” 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of West Branch, Iowa 

that the Council has considered the issue of whether Acciona Windpower North America, LLC should be 

rebated a portion of tax increment revenues and this Council has concluded that the appropriation should 

occur for Fiscal Year 2021-2022. 

 

 

Passed and approved this 16th day of November, 2020. 

 

 

      _________________________ 

      Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

____________________________________ 

Redmond Jones II, City Administrator/Clerk 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  November 16, 2020 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution 1955 – A Consideration to Approve the Request of Casey’s 

Marketing Company to Rebate a Portion of Tax Increment Revenues. 

CITY GOAL: Promote quality of life including public safety, community pride events, 

strong citizen involvement, parks and recreation opportunities and 

investment. 

PREPARED BY: Redmond Jones II, City Administrator  

DATE:  November 12, 2020  
     
BACKGROUND:  

 

Resolution accepting the terms of a City Council approved Development Agreement. 

 

There has been extensive conversation regarding the standing of our contract with Casey’s and if 

Casey are in violation of their contractual obligation.  In an attempt to work with Casey in this 

regard a letter was sent to their corporate offices. 

 

In response Casey’s indicated an interest providing land to the city at no cost.  Considering the 

success of development project that was incentivized and the proposal to have land donated to the 

city.  There is thought to continue with the previous contract (despite potential claims of breach) 

and honor the city’s obligations.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Resolution 1955 – Move to Action 
 
REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Non Consent Item 8 



 

 

RESOLUTION 1955 

 

A CONSIDERATION TO APPROVE THE REQUEST OF CASEY’S MARKETING 

COMPANY TO REBATE A PORTION OF TAX INCREMENT REVENUES 

 
 WHEREAS, the City and Casey’s Marketing Company entered into a Development Agreement that 

was recorded in Book 1271 at page 12, Records of the Cedar County Recorder’s Office (the “Agreement”); 

and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Agreement contemplates performance of certain actions that may or must be 

performed by the parties to the Agreement; and 

  

 WHEREAS, pursuant to the Agreement, as long as Casey’s operated a convenience store at its 

current location, the City Council would decide whether to appropriate the incremental tax revenues for the 

property back to Casey’s Marketing Company; and 

 

 WHEREAS, each of the possible rebate payments contemplated “shall be subject to annual 

appropriation of the City Council;” and 

  

 WHEREAS, “[p]rior to December 1st of each year during the term” of the Agreement “the City 

Council shall consider the issue of obligating for appropriation to the funding of the payments due in the 

following fiscal year, an amount of tax increment revenues to be collected in the following fiscal year;” and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council is preparing to submit its annual certification “under Iowa Code 

section 403.19 to the Cedar County Auditor . . . the amount of taxes to be paid over the City and the amount,” 

if any, “obligated for appropriation for rebate to Casey’s Marketing Company.” 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of West Branch, Iowa 

that the Council has considered the issue of whether Casey’s Marketing Company should be rebated 100% 

of tax increment revenues collected from the property and concluded that the contemplated certification and 

appropriation process should include the rebate of 100% of the incremental tax revenues collected on the 

Property back to Casey’s Marketing Company. 

 

 *  *  *  * 

 

Passed and approved this 16th day of November, 2020. 

 

 

   

       

______________________________ 

                                                         Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

______________________________________ 

Redmond Jones II, City Administrator / Clerk 

 



 

 

  

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  November 16, 2020 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution 1956 - A Resolution Considering the Issue of Whether EMV 

Holdings, LLC should be Rebated the Incremental Tax Revenues Pursuant to 

Development Agreement. 

CITY GOAL: Develop inviting high profile visual impact projects; including gateways, 

establishing destination, branding and other projects that reflect tax results. 

PREPARED BY: Gordon Edgar, Finance Director 

DATE:  November 12, 2020  
     
BACKGROUND:  

 
 
Resolution accepting the terms of a City Council approved Development Agreement. 

 

The City has agreed to grant tax increment payments to EMV Holdings, LLC as an incentive to 

construct an events center.  The agreement requires an annual appropriation by the City Council 

by December 1st of each year. 

 

The City must now approve or deny the annual appropriation. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Resolution 1956 – Move to Action 
 
REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Non Consent Item 9 



 

 

RESOLUTION 1956 

 

A RESOLUTION CONSIDERING THE ISSUE OF WHETHER EMV HOLDINGS, 

LLC SHOULD BE REBATED THE INCREMENTAL TAX REVENUES 

PURSUANT TO DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT. 

 
 WHEREAS, the City and EMV Holdings, LLC entered into a Development Agreement on April 1, 

2019; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Agreement contemplates performance of certain actions that may or must be 

performed by the parties to the Agreement; and 

  

 WHEREAS, pursuant to the Agreement, if  EMV Holdings, LLC has performed as agreed, the City 

Council would decide whether to appropriate the incremental tax revenues for the property back to EMV 

Holdings, LLC; and 

 

 WHEREAS, each of the possible rebate payments contemplated “shall be subject to annual 

appropriation of the City Council;” and 

  

 WHEREAS, “prior to December 1st of each year during the term” of the Agreement “the City 

Council shall consider the issue of obligating for appropriation to the funding of the payments due in the 

following fiscal year, an amount of tax increment revenues to be collected in the following fiscal year;” and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council is preparing to submit its annual certification “under Iowa Code 

section 403.19 to the Cedar County Auditor . . . the amount of taxes to be paid over the City and the amount,” 

if any, “obligated for appropriation for rebate to EMV Holdings, LLC.” 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of West Branch, Iowa 

that the Council has considered the issue of whether EMV Holdings, LLC should be rebated $15,000 (subject 

to change)  of tax increment revenues collected from the property and concluded that the contemplated 

certification and appropriation process should include the rebate of $15,000 (subject to change)  of the 

incremental tax revenues collected on the Property back to EMV Holdings, LLC, the first payment being 

December 1, 2021. 

 

 

Passed and approved this 16th day of November, 2020. 

 

 

 

      _________________________ 

      Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_____________________________________ 

Redmond Jones II, City Administrator / Clerk 

 

 

 



 

 

  

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  November 16, 2020 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution 1957 – A Consideration to Approve the Request of Meadows 

Development, Inc. to Rebate a Portion of Tax Increment Revenues. 

CITY GOAL: Promote quality of life including public safety, community pride events, 

strong citizen involvement, parks and recreation opportunities and 

investment. 

PREPARED BY: Gordon Edgar, Finance Director  

DATE:  November 13, 2020  
     
BACKGROUND:  

Resolution accepting the terms of a City Council approved Development Agreement. 

 

The City has agreed to grant tax increment payments to Meadows Development, Inc. as an 

incentive to construct public improvements necessary to complete The Meadows Subdivision, Part 

Four.  The agreement requires an annual appropriation by the City Council by December 1st of 

each year. 

 

The City must now approve or deny the annual appropriation. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Resolution 1957 – Move to Action 
 
REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Non Consent Item 10 



 

 

RESOLUTION 1957 

 

RESOLUTION CONSIDERING THE ISSUE OF WHETHER MEADOWS 

DEVELOPMENT, INC. SHOULD BE REBATED THE INCREMENTAL TAX 

REVENUES PURSUANT TO DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT. 

 
 WHEREAS, the City and Meadows Development, Inc. entered into a Development Agreement on 

October 1, 2018 and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Agreement contemplates performance of certain actions that may or must be 

performed by the parties to the Agreement; and 

  

 WHEREAS, pursuant to the Agreement, if  Meadows Development, Inc. has performed as agreed, 

the City Council would decide whether to appropriate the incremental tax revenues for the property back to 

Meadows Development, Inc.; and 

 

 WHEREAS, each of the possible rebate payments contemplated “shall be subject to annual 

appropriation of the City Council;” and 

  

 WHEREAS, “prior to December 1st of each year during the term” of the Agreement “the City 

Council shall consider the issue of obligating for appropriation to the funding of the payments due in the 

following fiscal year, an amount of tax increment revenues to be collected in the following fiscal year;” and 

 

 WHEREAS the City Council is preparing to submit its annual certification “under Iowa Code section 

403.19 to the Cedar County Auditor . . . the amount of taxes to be paid over the City and the amount,” if any, 

“obligated for appropriation for rebate to Meadows Development, Inc.” 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of West Branch, Iowa 

that the Council has considered the issue of whether Meadows Development, Inc. should be rebated $26,333  

(subject to change based on new housing) of tax increment revenues collected from the property and 

concluded that the contemplated certification and appropriation process should include the rebate of $26,333  

of the incremental tax revenues collected on the Property back to Meadows Development, Inc., the first 

payment being December 1, 2021. 

  

  

 

Passed and approved this 16th day of November, 2020. 

 

 

 

      _________________________ 

      Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_____________________________________ 

Redmond Jones II, City Administrator / Clerk 



 

 

  

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  November 16, 2020 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution 1958 – Obligating Funds from the Urban Renewal Tax Revenue 

Fund for the Payment of Annual Appropriation Tax Increment Financed 

Obligations in Fiscal Year 2021 - 2022. 

CITY GOAL: Develop, maintain and rebuild safe, clean, diverse, healthy, neighborhoods, 

including partnering with the school district. 

PREPARED BY: Gordon Edgar, Finance Director 

DATE:  November 12, 2020  
     
BACKGROUND:  

 

The City of West Branch, Iowa has adopted an Urban Renewal Plan that created a tax increment 

district as authorized by Chapter 403, State Code of Iowa and allowed for the creation of a special 

fund to pay for expenses related to the Urban Renewal Plan.  This document allows a municipality 

to incur indebtedness as it relates to the Urban Renewal Plan and requires a municipality to certify 

to the county auditor by December 1, the amount of indebtedness payable from the special fund of 

the municipality. This indebtedness is summarized on the attached certification form. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Resolution 1958 – Move to Action 
 
REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        
 
 

Non Consent Item 11 



CITY TIF FORM 1 - INDEBTEDNESS CERTIFICATION Cover Sheet

City: County:

Urban Renewal Area Name:

Urban Renewal Area Number: (Use five-digit Area Number Assigned by the County Auditor)

I hereby certify to the County Auditor that for the Urban Renewal Area within the City and County named above the

City has outstanding loans, advances, indebtedness, or bonds, none of which have been previously certified, in the

collective amount shown below, all of which qualify for repayment from the special fund referred to in paragraph 2

of Section 403.19 of the Code of Iowa.

Urban Renewal Area Indebtedness Not Previously Certified*: $

*There must be attached a supporting itemized listing of the dates that individual loans, advances, indebtedness, or

bonds were initially approved by the governing body.  (Complete and attach 'CITY TIF FORM 1.1'.)

The County Auditor shall provide the available TIF increment tax in subsequent fiscal years without further certification

until the above-stated amount of indebtedness is paid to the City.  However, for any fiscal year a City may elect to

receive less than the available TIF increment tax by certifying the requested amount to the County Auditor on or

before the preceding December 1.  (File 'CITY TIF FORM 2' with the County Auditor by the preceding December 1

for each of those fiscal years where all of the TIF increment tax is not requested.)

A City reducing certified TIF indebtedness by any reason other than application of TIF increment tax received from

the County Treasurer shall certify such reduced amounts to the County Auditor no later than December 1 of the year

of occurrence.  (File 'CITY TIF 'FORM 3' with the County Auditor when TIF indebtedness has been reduced by any

reason other than application of TIF increment tax received from the County Treasurer.) 

Notes/Additional Information:

Dated this  day of ,

Signature of Authorized Official Telephone

CODE OF IOWA SECTION 403.19 TAX INCREMENT FINANCING (TIF) INDEBTEDNESS

CERTIFICATION TO COUNTY AUDITOR

16006

Due To County Auditor By December 1 Prior To The Fiscal Year TIF Increment Tax Is Requested

Use One Certification Per Urban Renewal Area

0

West Branch

No new information to report.

West Branch Urban Renewal

Cedar









 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1958 

 

A RESOLUTION OBLIGATING FUNDS FROM THE URBAN RENEWAL TAX 

REVENUE FUND FOR THE PAYMENT OF ANNUAL APPROPRIATION TAX 

INCREMENT FINANCED OBLIGATIONS IN FISCAL YEAR 2022 

 

 WHEREAS; the City of West Branch, Iowa has hereto adopted an Urban Renewal Plan and 

established pursuant thereto a tax increment district all as authorized and provided by Chapter 403, 

State Code of Iowa; and 

 

WHEREAS; the City has advanced monies, incurred indebtedness and other costs which 

this Council finds qualified for payment from the special fund authorized by Section 403.19(3) of 

the State Code of Iowa as summarized on the attached schedule; and 

 

WHEREAS; the City has scheduled payments in the amount of $542,380.26 (subject to 

change based on new housing) which shall become due in the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2021 

with respect to costs associated with the Water Tower #2 Project, the Downtown East 

Redevelopment Project, Park Improvements-Pedersen Valley, Casey’s General Store Rebate 

Agreement, 2017 GO Corporate Purpose Bond,   College Street and 2nd Street Improvements Project, 

and Fidelity Bank & Trust Judgement Settlement Loan; The Meadows Part 4 Rebate Agreement, 

and EMV Holdings, LLC Rebate Agreement and 

 

WHEREAS; it is now necessary for the City Council to obligate for appropriation to the 

Annual Payment, funds anticipated to be received in the Urban Renewal Tax Revenue Fund in the 

fiscal year beginning July 1, 2021;  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF WEST 

BRANCH, IOWA, that: 

 

 Section 1.  The City Council obligates $542,380.26 (subject to change based on new 

housing) for appropriation from the Urban Renewal Tax Fund to the Annual Payment in the fiscal 

year beginning July 1, 2021. 

 

 Section 2.  The City Clerk is hereby directed to reflect the total amount of 

$542,380.26 in the City’s budget for the next succeeding fiscal year. 

 

PASSED, ADOPTED AND APPROVED this 16th day of November, 2020. 

 

 

       ______________________________ 

       Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

____________________________________ 

Redmond Jones II, City Administrator/Clerk 



 

 

  

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  November 16, 2020 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution 1959 – Resolution Approving Annual Insurance Renewals With 

Wellmark Blue Cross Blue Shield Of Iowa For Health And Dental Insurance. 

CITY GOAL: Establish a sound and sustainable government supported by professionalism, 

progressive thinking and modernizing the organization. 

PREPARED BY: Gordon Edgar, Finance Director 

DATE:  November 13, 2020  
     
BACKGROUND:  

 
The Wellmark Blue Cross Blue Shield health and dental insurance program has “grandfather” 

status which allows the city to continue the high quality insurance program the employees have 

enjoyed the past several years.  The health insurance premium for next year will increase 13.45% 

from the current premium.  This will take it to almost the same amount that it was for the Plan 

Year beginning 02-01-2019.  There will be no change in the dental insurance premium. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Resolution 1959 – Move to Action  
 
REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Non Consent Item 12 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 





 

 

RESOLUTION 1959 

 

RESOLUTION APPROVING ANNUAL INSURANCE RENEWALS WITH 

WELLMARK BLUE CROSS BLUE SHIELD OF IOWA FOR HEALTH AND 

DENTAL INSURANCE. 

 

WHEREAS, the City of West Branch, Iowa received insurance renewal quotations from 

Wellmark Blue Cross Blue Shield of Iowa for health and dental insurance; and 
 
WHEREAS, after reviewing the insurance renewal quotations, the City Council has decided 

to accept the quotations, effective February 1, 2021; and 
 

 NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the Council of the City of West Branch, 

Iowa, that the insurance renewals with Wellmark Blue Cross Blue Shield of Iowa are hereby 

approved.   

 
 

*   *   *   *   * 

Passed and approved this 16th day of November, 2020 

  

 

 

 

 

      ______________________________ 

      Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

 
 
ATTEST: 

 

 

_____________________________________ 

Redmond Jones II, City Administrator/Clerk 

 

 
 
 
 



 

 

  

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  November 16, 2020 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Discussion Item: Update on Progress of the Capital Improvement Plan. 

CITY GOAL: Develop, maintain and rebuild safe, clean, diverse, healthy, neighborhoods, 

including partnering with the school district. 

PREPARED BY: Redmond Jones II, City Administrator / Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

DATE:  November 12, 2020  
     
BACKGROUND:  

The Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) contains all the individual capital projects, equipment 

purchases, and major studies for a local government; in conjunction with construction and 

completion schedules, and in consort with financing plans. 
 
Top 

 Wapsi Creek Widening 

 Greenview Connection 

 West Branch School District Turn Lane, Crosswalk, and Sidewalks Project(s) 

 Wastewater Treatment Process 

 Hoover Hwy Project (Intersection Johnson County Project) 
High 

 Northwest End Booster Station 

 East Side 
o Seal Coat Street Replacement 

 East Orange St. from N. 5th – N. 6th St. 
 East Green St. from N. 5th – N. 6th St. 
 East College St. from N.5th – N.6th St. 

o Water Main Replacement 
 East College St. from N. 5th – N. 6th St. 
 East Orange St. from N. 5th – N. 6th St.  
 N. 6th Street East College Street – North End 
 N. 6th Street East Main Street – East College 

Moderate 

 Cedar / Johnson County Road 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Update – Feedback and Direction 
 
REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        
  

Non Consent Item 13 


	2020AnnualReport.pdf
	Welcome
	Circulation & Collection Size
	Ebooks
	Summer Library Program

	Programming
	Financial Information
	Library Visits
	About this Report


	Council Claims pkt 11-16-20.pdf
	Claims pd 11-16-2020
	CLAIMS PD 11-16-2020 FINAL

	Council rpt 11-16-2020
	Revenue Oct 2020
	OCT FY2021 REVENUE PUB


	200171 - NEWPORT FAB&MACHINE Combined - 2020-11-05.pdf
	C0.00 COVER SHEET
	Sheets and Views
	C0.00 COVER SHEET


	C0.01 LEGENED & GENERAL NOTES
	Sheets and Views
	C0.01 LEGENED & GENERAL NOTES


	C0.02 GENERAL NOTES
	Sheets and Views
	C0.02 GENERAL NOTES


	C1.00 EXISTING CONDITIONS &
	Sheets and Views
	C1.00 EXISTING CONDITIONS &


	C2.00 SITE & UTILITY PLAN
	Sheets and Views
	C2.00 SITE & UTILITY PLAN


	C3.00 DETENTION POND &
	Sheets and Views
	C3.00 DETENTION POND &


	200171-Truck Movements 2020-11-05.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	22x34



	TIF Cert for Council-FY2022.pdf
	TIF Cert for Council-FY2022
	West Branch TIF Cert  - FY22 form 1




